
SAN FRANCISCO BAY AREA RAPID TRANSIT DISTRICT 
300 Lakeside Drive, P. 0. Box 12688, Oakland, CA 94604-2688 

BOARD MEETING AGENDA 
March 8, 2018 

9:00 a.m. 

A regular meeting of the Board of Directors will be held at 9:00 a.m. on Thursday, March 8, 2018, in 
the BART Board Room, Kaiser Center 20th Street Mall - Third Floor, 344 - 20th Street, Oakland, 
California. 

Members of the public may address the Board of Directors regarding any matter on this agenda. 
Please complete a "Request to Address the Board" form (available at the entrance to the Board Room) 
and hand it to the Secretary before the item is considered by the Board. If you wish to discuss a matter 
that is not on the agenda during a regular meeting, you may do so under Public Comment. 

Any action requiring more than a majority vote for passage will be so noted. 

Items placed under "consent calendar" are considered routine and will be received, enacted, approved, 
or adopted by one motion unless a request for removal for discussion or explanation is received from a 
Director or from a member of the audience. 

Please refrain from wearing scented products (perfume, cologne, after-shave, etc.) to these meetings, as 
there may be people in attendance susceptible to environmental illnesses. 

BART provides service/accommodations upon request to persons with disabilities and individuals who 
are limited English proficient who wish to address BART Board matters. A request must be made 
within one and five days in advance of Board meetings, depending on the service requested. Please 
contact the Office of the District Secretary at 510-464-6083 for information. 

Rules governing the participation of the public at meetings of the Board of Directors and Standing 
Committees are available for review on the District's website (http://www.bart.gov/about/bod), in the 
BART Board Room, and upon request, in person or via mail. 

Meeting notices and agendas are available for review on the District's website 
(http://www.bart.gov/about/bod/meetings.aspx), and via email 
(https://public.govdelivery .com/accounts/CATRANBART /subscriber/new?topic _id=CATRANBAR T _ 
1904) or via regular mail upon request submitted to the District Secretary. Complete agenda packets 
(in PDF format) are available for review on the District's website no later than 48 hours in advance of 
the meeting. 

Please submit your requests to the District Secretary via email to BoardofDirectors@bart.gov; in 
person or U.S. mail at 300 Lakeside Drive, 23rd Floor, Oakland, CA 94612; fax 510-464-6011; or 
telephone 510-464-6083. 

Patricia K. Williams 
Interim District Secretary 



Regular Meeting of the 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

The purpose of the Board Meeting is to consider and take such action as the Board may desire 
in connection with: 

1. CALL TO ORDER 

A. Roll Call. 
B. Pledge of Allegiance. 
C. Introduction of Special Guests. 

2. CONSENT CALENDAR 

A. Approval of Minutes of the Meeting of February 22, 2018.* Board 
requested to authorize. 

B. District Base Pay Schedule.* Board requested to authorize. 

C. Recruitment and Relocation for the Positions of Chief Procurement 
Officer, Chief Performance and Audit Officer, and Assistant General 
Manager, Performance and Budget.* Board requested to authorize. 

D. 2018 Organization of Committees and Special Appointments Revision.* 
Board requested to authorize. 

E. Fiscal Year 2018 Second Quarter Financial Report.* For information. 

3. PUBLIC COMMENT- 15 Minutes 
(An opportunity for members of the public to address the Board of Directors on matters under 
their jurisdiction and not on the agenda. An additional period for Public Comment is provided.at 
the end of the Meeting.) 

4. ADMINISTRATION ITEMS 
Director Allen, Chairperson 
NO ITEMS. 

5. ENGINEERING AND OPERATIONS ITEMS 
Director Simon, Chairperson 

A. Award of Contract No. OlRQ-150, Construction of Hayward Maintenance 
Complex Project Central Warehouse.* Board requested to authorize. 

B. Agreement with BlackBox Network Services for Telecommunications 
System Maintenance.* Board requested to authorize. 

C. Santa Clara County BART Extension: Update on Phase I and Phase IL* 
For information. 

D. (CONTINUED from February 22, 2018, Board Meeting) 
Quarterly Performance Report, Second Quarter Fiscal Year 2018 - Service 
Performance Review.* For information. 

* Attachment available 2 of4 



6. PLANNING, PUBLIC AFFAIRS, ACCESS, AND LEGISLATION ITEMS 
Director Blalock, Chairperson 

A. State and Federal Legislative Update.* Board requested to authorize. 

B. Change Orders to State and Federal Legislative Advocacy Agreements for 
Extension of Time.* 
1. Agreement No. 6M7152, State Legislative Advocacy Services, with 

Schott & Associates. 
11. Agreement No. 6M7153, Federal Legislative Services, with CJ Lake, 

LLC. 
Board requested to authorize. 

C. Proposed BART Extension to Livermore Update.* For information. 

7. GENERALMANAGER'SREPORT 

A. Report of Activities, including Updates of Operational, Administrative, 
and Roll Call for Introductions Items. 

8. BOARDMATTERS 

A. Ratification of 39 Recommendations for Improvement to the BART 
Police Oversight Structure.* Board requested to ratify. 

B. Board Member Reports. 
(Board member reports as required by Government Code Section 53232.3(d) are 
available through the Office of the District Secretary. An opportunity for Board 
members to report on their District activities and observations since last Board Meeting.) 

C. Roll Call for Introductions. 
(An opportunity for Board members. to introduce a matter for consideration at a future 
Committee or Board Meeting or to request District staff to prepare items or reports.) 

D. In Memoriam. 
(An opportunity for Board members to introduce individuals to be commemorated.) 

9. PUBLIC COMMENT 
(An opportunity for members of the public to address the Board of Directors on matters under their 
jurisdiction and not on the agenda.) 

10. CLOSED SESSION (Room 303, Board Conference Room) 

A. CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL - ANTICIPATED LITIGATION 
Significant exposure to litigation pursuant to Government Code Section 54956.9: 
one potential case. 

* Attachment available 3 of4 



B. CONFERENCE WITH LABOR NEGOTIATORS: 
Designated representatives: Grace Crunican, General Manager; Michael Jones, Assistant 

General Manager, Human Resources; and Martin Gran, Chief 
Employee Relations Officer 

Employee Organizations: (1) Amalgamated Transit Union, Local 1555; 
(2) American Federation of State, County and Municipal 

Employees, Local 3993; 
(3) BART Police Officers Association; 
(4) BART Police Managers Association; 
(5) Service Employees International Union, Local 1021; and 
(6) Service Employees International Union, Local 1021, 

BART Professional Chapter 
(7) Unrepresented employees (Positions: all) 

Government Code Section: 54957.6 

C. PUBLIC EMPLOYEE EMPLOYMENT 
Title: 
Gov't. Code Section: 

District Secretary 
54957(b )(1) 

D. CONFERENCE WITH NEGOTIATORS 
Designated Representatives: Directors Keller, Raburn, and Simon 
Title: District Secretary 
Gov't. Code Section: 54957.6 

* Attachment available 4 of4 



DRAFT 

SAN FRANCISCO BAY AREA RAPID TRANSIT DISTRICT 
300 Lakeside Drive, P.O. Box 12688, Oakland, CA 94604-2688 

Board of Directors 
Minutes of the 1,808th Meeting 

February 22, 2018 

A regular meeting of the Board of Directors was held February 22, 2018, convening at 9:03 a.m. 
in the Board Room, 344 20th Street, Oakland, California. President Raburn presided; Kenneth A. 
Duron, District Secretary. 

Directors present: 

Absent: 

Directors Blalock, Dufty, Keller, McPartland, Saltzman, and Raburn. 

Director Simon. Directors Allen and Josefowitz entered the Meeting later. 

Director Josefowitz entered the meeting. 

Consent Calendar items brought before the Board were: 

1. Approval of Minutes of the Meetings of January 25, 2018, and February 8 
and 9, 2018. 

2. Award oflnvitation for Bid No. 9034, Fiberglass Walkway. 

3. 2018 Organization of Committees and Special Appointments Revision. 

Director Saltzman made the following motions as a unit. Director Blalock seconded the motions, 
which carried by unanimous electronic vote.· Ayes - 7: Directors Blalock, Dufty, Josefowitz, 
Keller, McPartland, Saltzman, and Raburn. Noes - 0. Absent-2: Directors Allen and Simon. 

1. That the Minutes of the Meetings of January 25, 2018, and February 8 
and 9, 2018, be approved. 

2. That the General Manager be authorized to award Invitation for Bid 
No. 9034, for Fiberglass Walkway, to Atlantic Track & Turnout Co., for 
an amount of $1,879,949.99, including tax, pursuant to notification to be 
issued by the General Manager, and subject to compliance with the 
District's protest procedures and the Federal Transit Administration's 
requirements related to protests. 

(The foregoing motion was made on the basis of analysis by the staff and 
certification by the Controller/Treasurer that funds are available for this 

. purpose.) 

3. That the Board ratify the revision to the Organization of Committees and 
Special Appointments for 2018, creating the Labor Negotiations Review 
Special Committee. 

-1-



DRAFT 

Director Allen entered the Meeting. 

President Raburn called for Public Comment. The following individuals addressed the Board. 
Jake.Luba 
Yolanda Banks Reed 
Jayvon Muhammad 
Afiyah Chambers 
Asale Chandler 
Omorede Hamilton 
Cat Brooks 
Elliot Hosman 
Cephus Johnson 
James Burch 
Narcella Banks 
Members of the Deecolonize Academy - Race, Poverty and Media Justice Institute 
LaRon Mayfield 
Kevin Reed 
Kanikah Mawusi LeMon 
Kariem Mayfield 
Deana Abello 
Nailah Watkins 
Shanda Mayfield 
Andre Z. Sosa 
Jehan Hakim 
Abayomi Jones 
TurhaAk 
Lonnie Monroe 
Sara Desumala 

President Raburn announced that the order of agenda items would be changed, and that the 
Board would enter into closed session under Item 10-A (Public Employee Employment/ 
Appointment), Item 10-B (Conference with Negotiators), and Item 10-C (Conference with Labor 
Negotiators) of the Meeting agenda, and that the Board would reconvene in open session at the 
conclusion of the closed session. 

The Board Meeting recessed at 11 :00 a.m. 

The Board Meeting reconvened in closed session at 11 :08 a.m. 

Directors present: 

Absent: 

Directors Allen, Blalock, Dufty, Josefowitz, Keller, McPartland, 
Saltzman, and Raburn. 

Director Simon. 

The Board Meeting recessed at 11 :45 a.m. 

-2-



DRAFT 

The Board Meeting reconvened in open session at 11 :50 a.m. 

Directors present: Directors Allen, Blalock, Dufty, Keller, McPartland, Saltzman, and 
Raburn. 

Absent: Directors Josefowitz and Simon. 

President Raburn announced that the Board had concluded Item 1 OA and 1 OB of the Regular 
Meeting Agenda. The Board of Directors voted in Closed Session to appoint Patricia Williams 
as Interim District Secretary effective February 24, 2018, until the Board in its discretion takes 
further action. The vote was unanimous with Director Simon absent. 

President Raburn brought the matter of Compensation and Benefits for Interim District Secretary 
before the Board. Director Dufty moved that the base salary of Patricia Williams serving as 
Interim District Secretary shall be at the annual rate of $156,432.50 during this appointment. 
Benefits will continue to be those applicable to non-represented managers generally. Director 
Blalock seconded the motion, which carried by unanimous electronic vote. Ayes - 7: Directors 
Allen, Blalock, Dufty, Keller, McPartland, Saltzman, and Raburn. Noes - 0. Absent-2: 
Directors Josefowitz and Simon. 

Director Allen, Chairperson of the Administration Committee, had no report. 

Director McPartland, Vice-Chairperson of the Engineering and Operations Committee, brought 
the matter of Award of Contract No. 15CQ-200A, Rail Procurement, before the Board. Mr. Paul 
Oversier, Assistant General Manager, Operations, presented the item. The item was discussed. 
Director Blalock moved that the General Manager be authorized to award Contract 
No. 15CQ-200A, an estimated quantity contract, for Rail Procurement, to L.B. Foster Company 
of Pittsburgh, PA, for the Base Bid Price of $20,425,877.95, including all applicable sales taxes, 
pursuant to notification to be issued by the General Manager, subject to compliance with the 
District's protest procedures; and that the General Manager also be authorized to purchase up to 
150 percent of the Contract Base Bid Price, subject to the availability of funds. Director Dufty 
seconded the motion, which carried by unanimous electronic voter. Ayes - 7: Directors Allen, 
Blalock, Dufty, Keller, McPartland, Saltzman, and Raburn. Noes - 0. Absent-2: Directors 
Josefowitz and Simon. 

Director Josefowitz entered the Meeting. 

Director McPartland brought the matter of Change Order to Contract No. OlRQ-110, 
Construction of Hayward Maintenance Complex Project Maintenance Facilities, with Clark 
Construction, for Car Lift Rail Modifications to the Hayward Shop Shallow Pit Car Lifts 
(C.O. No. 235), before the Board. Mr. Thomas Horton, Group Manager, Hayward Maintenance 
Project, presented the item. The item was discussed. Director Blalock moved that the General 
Manager be authorized to execute Change Order No. 235 to Contract No. OlRQ-110, Hayward 
Maintenance Complex Maintenance Facilities, with Clark Construction, for an amount not to 
exceed $816,000.00, for Car Lift Rail Modifications to the Hayward Shop Shallow Pit Car Lifts. 
Director Saltzman seconded the motion, which carried by unanimous electronic vote. Ayes - 8: 

-3-



Directors Allen, Blalock, Dufty, Josefowitz, Keller, McPartland, Saltzman, and Raburn. 
Noes - 0. Absent- 1: Director Simon. 

Director Saltzman exited the Meeting. 

DRAFT 

Director McPartland brought the matter of BART Police Citizen Oversight Model Evaluation 
Report before the Board. Mr. Russell Bloom, Independent Police Auditor; and Mr. Michael 
Gennaco and Mr. Aaron Zisser, OIR Group, presented the item. The report was discussed. 

Director McPartland brought the matter of Santa Clara County BART Extension: Update on 
Phase I and Phase II, before the Board. Mr. Robert Mitroff, Chief Planning and Development 
Officer, and Ms. Bernadette Lambert, Project Manager, presented the item. The item was 
discussed. 

Director McPartland announced that the Quarterly Performance Report would be continued to a 
future meeting. 

Director Blalock, Chairperson of the Planning, Public Affairs, Access, and Legislation 
Committee, brought the matter of Dublin/Pleasanton Station Hybrid Parking Update before the 
Board. Mr. Val Menotti, Chief Planning and Development Officer; Ms. Rachel Factor, Senior 
Planner; and Ms. Marianna Parreiras, Project Manager, presented the item. The item was 
discussed. 

The following individuals addressed the Board. 
Robert S. Allen 
Jerry Grace 

President Raburn called for the General Manager's Report. 

Ms. Crunican reported on steps she had taken and activities and meetings she had participated in, 
ridership, upcoming events, and outstanding Roll Call for Introductions items. 

Ms. Crunican thanked Kenneth Duron for his District knowledge and service over the years. 

President Raburn called for Board Member Reports, Roll Call for Introductions, and In 
Memoriam. 

Director Dufty requested an In Memoriam for Sharen Hewitt, San Francisco Civil Rights Public 
_Housing advocate and Police Accountability al).d Social Justice activist on his and Director 
Simon's behalf. 

Director Dufty reported he and Director Saltzman had attended attending a Transit Center 
Workshop in New York for Board Members of transit properties. 

Director Dufty reported he had toured a new 10,000 square foot facility funded by SEPTA, City 
of Philadelphia and Jon Bon Jovi, within a train station providing services to the homeless. 

-4-



DRAFT 

Director Dufty presented Mr. Duron with a Proclamation from the City and County of San 
Francisco and designated February 22, 2018, as Kenneth Duron Day in the City of San 
Francisco. 

Director Blalock requested an In Memoriam for Don Biddle, Councilmember from the City of 
Dublin. 

Director Blalock reported visiting the lighting project at the Lafayette Station and parking re
arrangement at the Walnut Creek Station with Director Allen. 

Director Josefowitz requested: Staff prepare a plan for Board review on how BART can prevent 
charges to customers who enter and exit the same station within 10 minutes, or some suitable 
short period of time indicating that the customer has chosen not to ride BART after entering the 
fare gates. 

Director Blalock seconded the request. 

Director Josefowitz thanked Mr. Duron for his service at BART. 

Director Allen reported she had attended meetings with Director Blalock and spoke at the Rotary 
Club of Walnut Creek. 

· Director Allen thanked Mr. Duron for his service and congratulated Ms. Williams on her 
appointment as Interim District Secretary. 

Director Keller thanked Mr. Duron for his service. 

Director McPartland thanked Director Dufty for the proclamation for Kenneth Duron and 
thanked Mr. Duron for his service to BART. 

President Raburn reported he attended the Capitol Corridor Joint Powers Authority Board 
Meeting and Alameda Mayor's Conference. 

President Raburn thanked Kenneth Duron for his service and dedication to the District. 

President Raburn called for Public Comment. No comments were received. 

The Meeting was adjourned at 4: 15 p.m. in Memory of Sharen Hewitt and Don Biddle. 

-5-

Patricia K. Williams 
Interim District Secretary 



EXECUTIVE DECISION DOCUMENT 

GENERAL GENERAL MANAGER ACTION REQ'D: 

DATE: 2/22/2018 BOARD INITIATED ITEM: No 

Originator/Prepared by: Diane Iwata Controller/Treasurer District Secretary BARC ·~;;:W .... " .. 
Signature/Date: 1,1{t}tl \i 

[ l 

District Base Pay Schedule 

PURPOSE: 

To approve a base pay schedule effective January 1, 2018, in a form prescribed by 
CalPERS. 

DISCUSSION: 

The District contracts with the California Public Employees Retirement System (CalPERS). 
for employee retirement benefits. CalPERS' rules control whether compensation qualifies as 
reportable to CalPERS for purposes of retirement calculations. For base compensation to 
be reportable for purposes of retirement calculation, CalPERS requires that the District's 
pay schedules be formally approved by the Board, including each position title and pay rate, 
and that they be publicly available ( e.g. the District website). 

Attachment A is the base pay schedule effective January 1, 2018. It is important to note this 
table does not make changes to compensation for any District employee. It reflects 
negotiated salary changes with each union already approved by the Board through its 
ratification of the Collective Bargaining Agreements (CBA's). The pay for Board
appointees has been approved by the Board. The pay bands for non-represented employees 
has been approved by the Board with the adoption of the annual budget or notice has been 
provided by the General Manager to the Board. Staff requests that the Board approve the 
attached salary schedule. 

FISCAL IMP ACT: 

There is no fiscal impact to the District for this proposed action. 



District Base Pay Schedule (cont.) 

ALTERNATIVES: 

To not approve the action. However, failure to do so may result in CalPERS' disqualification 
of pay as "compensation eamable" for reporting and determination of District employees' 
retirement benefits. 

RECOMMENDATION: 

Approve the following motion. 

MOTION: 

The Board approves the base pay schedule in effect January 1, 2018. 



San Francisco Bay Area Rapid Transit District 
Pay Schedule (Noted by Bargaining Unit) 

As of January 1, 2018 
ATTACHMENT A 

---·--· --------"'-·-·--·---.--.-- AFSCME, Local 3993 ·---·-·-· $93,590.59 $121,667.45. 
000070 Accounting Supervisor ·--.. --- __ .. __ AFSCME, Local 3993 _ _ AFG $106,501.07 $138,451.39 

3 000051 ..... _ !,1set ,So~~inato!.._ ___ .. __ ,,_,, _______ . AFSCME, Local 3993 -··-··-- AFF . $99,223.62 $128,991.~4 
4 000019 Asst Logistics Program Manager AFSCME, Local 3993 AFG $106,501.07 $138,451.39 

;....... . ......;..----· --· -----· .. -·--·---··-·· .. ···--···-"·-· -· . ----·-··~---·--·-·-+-----'.-'--'---..+...:-
5 FC230____ Asst Mgr of Revenue. Cont~oL_··"·--- AFSCME, Local_ 3993 _____ ._ .· ·- AF!:!__ $113,093.24 $147~·021.ii! 

6 MC215 __ _J~'};~ip Maint Supv .. ·----·----·-- AFSCME, Local 3993 ·-·--- AFE $93,590.59 $121,667.45j 
7 -·- TC22{} __ ~ ~ Ma?t Supv _____ .. ____ ,, _________ AFSCME, Local 3993 _ --·--- AFF ___ $99,223.62 $128,991.84 
8 IC120 Data Base Administrator . . . AFSCME, Local 3993 AFH $113,093.24 $147,021.11 

9 QC216 District Right of Way Surveyor AFSCME, Lo~93 ··-·------· AFG $106,501.07 $138,451.39 

10 SFl'!_~---- Enviro~~~~d~!-~!sti:_~~~---- --·· AFSCME, Local 399~"-· __ _ AFH $113,093.24 $147,021.ijl 

11 000021 Fac/Ut~E_~~_!!~~-9?_q~di~-~t~~-~----- ---- AFSCME, Local 3993·--.. ·····---- AFF $99,223.62 $128,991.8~. 

g_ ~~-Q. .. ___ Facilities MaintSupv ··---.. ·--~- _ ··----· AFSCME, Lo~3 .. ---··------- ~FE $93,590.59 $~~45 

_13 SC132 lndustrial_Hygienist -·--·-----·-·------ AFSCME, Local 39§_,._~ ... AFG $·1·0· 6,501.07 $138,451.3~-
14 IC159_____ Info Systems_Security Officer_____ _ AFSCME, Local 3993_____ AFF $99,223.62 $128,991.84 

15 FC24Q ....... _ Insurance Analyst----·-.. ·-·--·----.. ---- AFSCM_E, Local 3993 AFF $99,223.62 __$128,991.84 

16 000~5~--- IT ProjecUvlcmager --~-.... ·- -~-.. -·--»- .. AFSCME, Locm 3993 _ --- AFI $120,658.00 $156,855.16 

17 L~ll~---·-· Legal Offi<:e Sup~----·------·---··----···-·· AFSCME, Local 3993 --· _ AFD $87,011.84 $113,115.61 
18 FC2~~---- Liability Risk.Analyst---·-·· .. ·-~----·----- AFSCME, Lo5al}993 ~ ... ---- AFE $93,590.59 $121,667.45 
~ 000001 ..... Mai~~pport Administrator__ --- AFSCME, Local 3993 --•--H ""-- AFD $87,011.84 $113,115~ 

l~~~:::=+t.~::t~~;~:~~ and:Lab. or Ad.m -~~:.-· ~FSCME: ~~~:: ~::~·~.~- -~· ~~.~ _ $~~~:~ .. :~:~: ~~~~:~~~:~ 
22 000023 =f Mgr of Access Programs ~E, Local 3993 AFH $113,093.24 $147,021.111 

23 FC215 ______ -~gr of A~~ting -----· ___ _ ·- AFSCME, Local}993 -···-~----- AFI $120,658.00 $156,855.161 
24 MC225 Mgr of Auto & Equip Maint AFSCME, Local 3993 AFH $113,093.24 $147,021.11 

- ·---- ----.---------·--·-·----·- -----·---- ·-·--·-+----......J...:..__.:...;..;;..;:.=..~4,....:..;:;..;.;.=..:....;.;.;;;.i 
25 000009 Mgr of Credit/Debit Fare Progr AFSCME, Local 3993 AFG $106,501:07 $138,451.39 

26 AC400. = .!Mgr_2!3!~rji_0~~=:~.:~~------~- AFSCME, Lo-~;j-3~~~~:_-,.·--· AFH $ll3,093.24 _$147mL11 

27_ TClQ? ____ . IM~r of Dr~fting ~-~~gu!~---· AFSCME, Local 3993 ____ AFI $120,658.0Q $156,855.16! 
28 SC075 fivi'gr of Employee/Patron Safety AFSCME, Local 3993 . AFI $120,658.00 $156,855.~ 
29 UC125 -. · Mgr of Inventory Management ~ Local 3993 AFG $106,501.07 $138,451.~j 

3'?..__ SCl~ .. ~----· Mgr of Operations Safety--·-· .. --·-·--- AFSCME, Local3993 ........... _. __ AFH $113,093.24 $147,021.llj 
31 AC300 Mgr of Special Projects AFSCME, Local 3993 AFI $120,658.00 $156,855.16 
- --···--··i-------·---··-··· .. ···----- ----------···-·--· .. ----··" -- - ----
~ ~5 -~igr of Transit Vehic~ Cleanin_____ AFSCME, Local 3993 _···--·-·--·-·-·--AFH $113,093.24 $147,021.11 
133 IOCll?...... . Operafu?ns Supv ·-·--·-·-····· _ AFSCME,_ Local3993 _. ···--- AFF__ $99,223.62 $128,991.84 

i ~~!-:-:~~~·::::d::v~:::y~~·::sc --- ~ :~~~~~: ~~~::1~:~ =- --·===E sm::~H! ~~~~:::~{:1 
~-ii~r -··•·. 1~~1~r:!-~~~~~f ~::~-~.p.:· -----~1;;~~~~:-~~~;! ~~~i, -·-=~Ai~~:E~:~r1!~~:~~I 
~1 J(i.c112 _ JJ>rin_cipal_Planner.. ------··--- ----J~FSCME, Locaf 3993 ---·-·· ____ AFH _ $1).3,093.21~i147,02l.11] 
/4~ JO.C226 .. _J Principal_Prop Devlop Officer. ··-·· _t~FS~rytE! _Local_ 3S93 .. ,.~---·~ ......... -.... AFH __ ,,. ,_$113))93,341$147,02)::11/ 

Page 1 of 17 



San Francisco Bay Area Rapid Transit District 
Pay Schedule (Noted by Bargaining Unit) 

As of January 1, 2018 

ATIACHMENTA 

Page 2 of 17 



San Francisco Bay Area Rapid Transit District 
Pay Schedule (Noted by Bargaining Unit) 

As of January 1, 2018 

ATIACHMENTA 

81 CB190 _ Adminis!rative Technicia~.-ATU ATU, Local 1555 -~··---· 036 $63,358.05 $74,539.09 

82 FB141 Budget Clerk-ATU ----- ATU, Local 1555 --·-·- 031 $60,441.68 $71,107.92 
83 08100 Communications Specialist ATU, Local 1555 -·----- 831 _$86,664.24 $101,958.06 

84 QQQ!,?.§..__ DMU Engineer, eBART -·-· . ·----- ATU, Local 1555 -·-···-··,,~ __ 651 .• J. $76,002.99 $89,415~~ 
85 HB105 •.• Employee{)ev Specialist -ATU _ ATU, Local 1555 ·-·--·· ---··- 839 ~0,967.14 $107,020.37 

86 08108 ___ Lost & Fo~ Clerk __ ·--·-·--··-----ATU_, Local~------ 019 _j60,441.68 $71,107.92 
87 08120 Operations Foreworker _ --·---· ATU,_ Local 1555 -·-··-~·--·-- 821 $78,840.94 $92,754.0~J 
88 08130 Power & Support.Controller ··-·--·- ATU, Local 1555 ---·----- 831 . $86,664.24 $101,958.06 

89 08135 Scheduling Analyst ------------ ATU, Local 1555 ---·---·· 731 $90,967.li $107,020.37 
90 CB145 Sr Clerk-ATU ______ -______ ATU, Local 1555 -·-·--·-··- 031 $60,441.68 $71,107.92 

91 08145 Sr Operations Foreworker ------ ATU, Local 1555 -·------·- 831 $86,664.24 $101,958.06_ 
92 18190 -·---,Sr Operations)1lpp5yst Anlyst ___ ATU, Local 1555 _________ 742 $96,500.56 $113,530.14 

93 AB135 -· Sr Secr_etary- ATU ---·- _ _ _ ATU, Local 1555 ---·--- 061 • _$60,441.68 $71,107.92 
94 CB160 Sr Transportation Clerk-·-·· ATU, Local 1~ 031 $60,441.68 $71,107.92 

95 000031 Sr. Scheduling Analy~TU__ ATU, Local 1555 ------ 732 $100,003.28 $117,651.04 
96 000044 Sr. Transp Training Clerk ___ - ___ ATU, Local 1555 ----·· 036 $63,358.05 $74,539.09 

97 0~_15~---··- Station Agent ----------·-·- ATU, Local 1555 ·--·--- 521 _[$64,625.39 $76,030.03 
98 081~- S_!~tion Agent- PT ____________ ATU, Local 1555 ----·------· 541 ____ I $7~1987.74 _$83,632.85 

99 OOQO~~-- Time & Labor Admin Analyst-ATU _ ATU, Local 1555 ·--·------- 741 $84,106.05 $98,948.51 

100 08160 .... Train Operator ··----·--·---·-- ATU, Local 1555 ··--·----~- 621 . $64,625.39 $76,030.03_ 
101 08161 .. _,ITr}in Operator- PT -------·---· _ ATU, Local 1555 __ .. _ · __ 641 $71,087.74 $83,632.85 

102 000033 -·- Transportation Adm Specialist ·-···--·- ATU, Local 1555 -----·--· 031 __ $60,441.68 $71,107.92 
103 CB175 Transportation Clerk ------- ATU, Local 1555 _~- =:]m ___ $60,441.68 $71,107.92 

Page 3 of 17 



San Francisco Bay Area Rapid Transit District 
Pay Schedule (Noted by Bargaining Unit) 

As of January 1, 2018 

ATIACHMENTA 

Page 4 of 17 



San Francisco Bay Area Rapid Transit District 
Pay Schedule (Noted by Bargaining Unit) 

As of January 1, 2018 
ATIACHMENTA 

Community Services Officer.!______ -------- 027 $52,870.27 $64,936.98 
147 OOQ096 ___ Community Services Officer II_ _ _ B~ffice~~ Assn____ 

0

029~_!91.9qj $66;560.42 

148 PE132 --·- Master Police Officer 1---------·-iAITTPolice Officers.Assn ___ 798 +$102,310.83L $102,310~83 
149 000109 --·- _Master Police Officer II ___ ,____ ___ _ BART Police Officers Assn_ _ __ }99 __ $105,380.29 $105,380.29 

150 000123 __ Master Police _officer Ill -·-- ··-- BART Police Officers Ass~---·--·-_ 800 .. __ . $106,403.23 $106,403.23 I 151 000110 __ Master Police Office!IV ··--·----~----- BART Police Officers Assn_,,___ _ __ 80~"'T$107,937.86 $107,937.86 
2 CE175 _ Police Ad min Specialist 1 .... ·-----·-·--- BART Police Officers Assn ___ 045 _J. $65,887.12 $77,003.68 

_153 000097 __ Police Ad min Specialist II-·-·-···----____ BART Police Officers Assn ___ 046 --r= $67,534.27 $78,928.51 

154 PE115 Police Dispatcher I -·--·-··---··--·-·----- BART Police Officers ~~~n----··-- 048 $68,490.66 $83,363.07 
155 000098 Police Di~.!!._~-,.·-------··---- BART Police Offic<:_~s A~----.-· 049 $701202.70 $85,447.0~ 
156 PE130 ____ Polic~ Office!:_~---·-----------·- BART Police~!.,~-'"·---·· 778 $59,842.43 __ $95,743.02 
157 000100 Police Officer _11 ____________________ BA~ce_Qffic~s Ass~---··--·- 779 $8_tt183.30 $98,615.50 

158 000101 Police S)ffic~-------··--- BART Police Officers Ass~----·-- 780 $82,981.39 $99,572.72 
159 PE129 Police Officer in Academy_______ BART P~!~ Assn ·---- 778 $59,842.43 $95,743.02 

160 000122 __ Police Officer IV ---~------ ·-·-·-- BART Police Officers Assn------.. ··- 781 _ _ $84,178.02 $101,008.75 
161 _PE140 _ Revenue Protection Guard I _______ BART Police Officers Assn____ 09a$63,831.46 $76,594.13 
162 000099 __ Revenue Protectio_n Guard II ·----·---- BART Police Officers. Assn_ __ _ 099 _ _ $65,426.82 · $78,508.77 

1!_163 00_9105 __ Sr Police Officer I - Adv.------··---- BART Police Office~~.fssn ____ .__ 792 $100~ $100;304.67 
164 PE131 Sr Police Officer I - Int. BART Police Officers Assn 788 fJi?,894.16 $100,304.67 

!'1165 000106 Sr Police Officer II -Adv. - · BART Police Officers Assn 793 I~,313.60 .$103,313.60 

,166 oop102~=s;:-Poli~~t[:_ln-c~:~ _:..=:~--- JBARTPottce Q!!L~~-;s_Ass~ =~..:..- 7M. $100,830.70 $100,83().70 
167 000107 __ Sr Police Officer Ill -Adv. _____ ---~-_ .. IBART Police Officers Assn·--- 794 __ $104,316.78 $104,316.78 

168 000103 Sr Police Officer I~·-. ·----- BART Police Q.~£~Sn··-··---- 790 ;~101,809.76 $101,809.76 
169 000~- Sr Police Officer IV - ~di.t.·-·----·-·-- BART Police Officers Assn ____ "··- 795 _ $105,821.25 $105,821.25 
170 000!04. __ Sr Police Officer IV- l_r:!!: _________ ,_ BART Police Officers Assn .. --- 791 -·· $103,278.24 $103,278.24 

Page 5 of 17 



San Francisco Bay Area Rapid Transit District 
Pay Schedule (Noted by Bargaining Unit) 

As of January 1, 2018 

ATIACHMENTA 

Page 6 of 17 



San Francisco Bay Area Rapid Transit District 
Pay Schedule (Noted by Bargaining Unit) 

As of January 1, 2018 

ATTACHMENT A 

. . Minimum/ . Maximu 
Barg Umt rade Annual Annual 

Page 7 of 17 



San Francisco Bay Area Rapid Transit District 
Pay Schedule (Noted by Bargaining Unit) 

As of January 1, 2018 

ATTACHMENT A 

Page 8 of 17 



San Francisco Bay Area Rapid Transit District 

Pay Schedule (Noted by Bargaining Unit) 

As of January 1, 2018 

ATTACHMENT A 

Page 9 of 17 



San Francisco Bay Area Rapid Transit District 
Pay Schedule (Noted by Bargaining Unit) 

As of January 1, 2018 

ATIACHMENTA 

EJIJob Code I Job Title Barg Unit Grade AMinimu
1 
m/ AMaxim,um/ 

. · _ • nnua nnua 

Page 10 of 17 



San Francisco Bay Area Rapid Transit District 
Pay Schedule (Noted by Bargaining Unit) 

As of January 1, 2018 

ATTACHMENT A 

Page 11 of 17 



San Francisco Bay Area Rapid Transit District 
Pay Schedule (Noted by Bargaining Unit) 

As of January 1, 2018 

ATTACHMENT A 

Page 12 of 17 



San Francisco Bay Area Rapid Transit District 
Pay Schedule (Noted by Bargaining Unit) 

As of January 1, 2018 
ATTACHMENT A 

1471 000052 _ Sr. Production Enwneer ___ ... , .. --·-·--.. -~-Represented Em.ployees _______ N06 ==r:fJ4,961.00 $147,191.00 
472 AF139 ___ Staff Asst _________________ . __ --···---~-Represented. Employees ___ JNOl _=t $67,485.00~104,605.00 

473 000057 _ Strategic Prg Mgr, Ext Affairs ---.. -~ Non-Represented Employees ··---J~12 __ 4 $133,622.00~~,114.00 

474 EF280 _jStructural Engineer -·---.. - ~-Represented Employees ·-iOS _j$86,132.00~,506.00 
475 000085 -··-· Super of eBART & BART t-0 OAK---··-·- Non-Represented Employees ___ Nll _lJ.127,256.00 $197,252.00 
476 MF535 ·-···-- Super of Power & Mech Maint -. ____ Non-Represe. nted Employees ·--- N11 _-J_tij'7,256.00 $197,252.00 
477 MF703 Super of Systems Ma int Non-Represented Employees j Nll [$i27,256.00 $197,252.00 

--- ---~--.---·-·------- T.:7 ---.,·--~· ---
478 MF605 _ Super of Track & Structures_ __. ______ !!!on-Represented Employees___ l Nll ..•. _$127,256.00 $197,252.00 

479 MF610 ~ I super of Way & Facilities-·--- ··-·---··---_! Non-Represented Employees=rNu ___ I $127,256.00 $197,252.00 
480 000087 ~perintendent of Sys eBART. . f N~~-Represented Employees. I Nll JJ127,256.00 $197,252.00 
481 HF133 . Supv Human Resources Programs .. :=]Non-Represented Employees ] NOS I $109,929.00 $170,391.00 

:~~ ~:~~~ -~~~ ~~~~:~ ~:;; ~h~~f ==--=~ _- =~ -~~=3;~~~::~~:::~::: :~~:~~::~]::---q~~:~!~:~~ _$~~~:~~::~~ 
484 EF08S ___ systemArchitect-AsstGrp Mgr. ·---~epr~ted Employees_ ·- f Nll $127,256.00 _$197,252.00 
485 HF160 Technical Recruiter _j~~epresented Employees l'Nos $86,132.00 $133,506.00 
486 FF130 . Technology Advances Ad min . . eRepresented Employees ']i'g1 $99,708.00 $154,549.00 

r:~~ ~:::; ··-=f r;:~nT~:~~r~lg~ngineer »----·-----·~--j~:~~:::~::: :~~:~~:::--·- ~~~ "-·1 $~~!:~~~:~~[H~ 
[489 KFOSO [Trans Officer.Ca. pitol Corridor Non-Represented Employees NlO f $121,196.00 $187,856.00 
[490 oroso···--·Trra~sportation o·perati~~~Mw___ Non-Represented EmpToy;~- NCi'9"-fsl.15,426.00 $178,912.00 
'491 TF233-· . Tvehk1;5y;~~;E~i-~~~7--··----··«··-· 1N;;~p-;:-~sented Employe~s . ]NOS j$8G:imo1 $133,506.00 

* Due to the unique nature of these jobs as executive management employees reporting directly to the General Manager, these 
classifications are eligible to receive Management Incentive Pay of $4,800 annually (26 equal pay period installments of $184.61) 

Page 13 of 17 



San Francisco Bay Area Rapid Transit District 
Pay Schedule (Noted by Bargaining Unit) 

As of January 1, 2018 

ATIACHMENTA 

Page 14 of 17 



San Francisco Bay Area Rapid Transit District 
Pay Schedule (Noted by Bargaining Unit) 

· As of January 1, 2018 

ATTACHMENT A 

Page 15 of 17 



San Francisco Bay Area Rapid Transit District 
Pay Schedule (Noted by Bargaining Unit) 

As of January 1, 2018 

ATTACHMENT A 

11#.. Job Code IIJob Title · •nit IIGrade AMinimul m/ AMaxim,um/ 
II' II - II nnua nnua 

Page 16 of 17 



San Francisco Bay Area Rapid Transit District 
Pay Schedule (Noted by Bargaining Unit) 

As of January 1, 2018 

ATIACHMENTA 

Page 17 of 17 



EXECUTIVE DECISION DOCUMENT 

&" GENERAL MANAGER ACTION REQ'D: 
Z ,Ucve ~ 2CJ () Board Approval and Authorization · 

DATE: 2/27/2018 BOARD INITIA1ED ITEM: No 

Originator/Prepared by: Gia Hole Controller/Treasurer District Secretary BARC 

Dept: Human Resources Administration 

Signa<~ 

~( t. 't -Z.( \ q' 

EMPLOYEE RECRUITMENT AND RELOCATION FOR THE POSITIONS OF 
CIDEF PROCUREMENT OFFICER, CHIEF PERFORMANCE AND AUDIT 
OFFICER, AND ASSISTANT GENERAL MANAGER, PERFORMANCE & 

BUDGET 

PURPOSE: 
To obtain Board authorization for a national recruitment and relocation agreement to assist 
the District with filling the positions of Chief Procurement Officer, Chief Performance and 
Audit Officer, and Assistant General Manager, Performance and Budget. 

DISCUSSION: 
On March 11, 1993, the Board adopted Resolution 4487, requiring Board approval prior to 
any recruiting activity to employ a person who is not a current District employee for an 
annual salary of $50,000 or more. The resolution also states that the District should confine 
its recruiting to the State of California, consistent with provisions of the law, and that no 
relocation or moving expenses would be offered to new employees without prior Board 
approval. 

The Chief Procurement Officer, Chief Performance and Audit Officer, and Assistant General 
Manager, Performance and Budget are senior management positions that require specialized 
skills derived from unique managerial/technical experience and education, which are critical 
to the District's progress in the Procurement, Performance, Audit and Budget departments 
respectively. · 



Board Approval and Authorization 

Specifically, the Chief Procurement Officer, under the direction of the Assistant General 
Manager, Administration, will provide strategic leadership and direction relating to 
procurement, overseeing the activities and operations of Procurement and Materials 
Management Department including Contract Administration, Warehousing/Stores, Inventory 
Control and Purchasing Plans. The Chief Performance and Audit Officer is responsible for 
serving in a prominent District leadership capacity to continuously monitor, manage and 
improve business performance across District departments. This position also coordinates 
internal and external operational and financial audits; provides highly responsible and 
complex administrative support to the Office of the General Manager and the Assistant 
General Manager, Performance and Budget. The Assistant General Manager, Performance 
and Budget is part of the executive team and will be responsible for leading 
Financial Planning, Budget, Performance and Audit. The incumbent will be accountable for 
accomplishing goals and objectives and providing strategic direction as it relates to each area 
under Performance and Budget. 

The expertise of a recruiting firm that has a deep familiarity with procurement, performance, 
audit and budget in a transit environment, as well as with recruiting sources and prospects 
will constitute a resource beyond that which is available internally. Likewise, the ability to 
offer relocation assistance in the event that one or more successful candidates are not from 
the immediate area will enhance the District's competitive posture in these searches. 

By adopting this motion, the Board will authorize staff to use an executive search firm for the 
recruitment. The objective in using a search firm is to increase the candidate pool and 
identify highly qualified applicants. In each recruitment work plan, every effort is made to 
locate qualified individuals in California and the San Francisco Bay Area in particular. 
However, recruitment will not be confined to California. 
Staffs intent is to enter into a search agreement for each position. 

The Board's action will allow for executing a relocation agreement within the parameters of 
current District practice as provided in Management Procedure 70. This procedure sets a 
maximum reimbursement for relocation at $ l 8;000 and it does not allow for reimbursement 
for loss on sale of residence. 

FISCAL IMP ACT: 

The costs for search firm fees will come from the FY18 and/or FY19 Operating Budget of 
the Office of Administration. Any subsequent relocation agreement cost will come from the 
FY18 and/or FY19 Operating Budget of the Office of Administration and Office of 
Performance and Budget. 

Funds will be budgeted in the Office of Administration operating budget (Cost Center 
0502420, Account 681300) as follows: 



Board Approval and Authorization 

Proposed Funding 

FY18 or FY19 (depending on relocation/fill date): $190,000 (approx, max) 

Funds will be budgeted in the Office of Performance and Budget operating budget (Cost 
Center 1302386, Account 681300) as follows: 
Proposed Funding 

FY18 or FY19 (depending on relocation/fill date):$18,000 (approx, max) 

Funds wiU be budgeted in the Office of Performance and Budget operating budget (Cost 
Center 1101466, Account 681300) as follows: 
Proposed Funding 

FY18 or FY19 (depending on relocation/fill date): $18,000 

Funding for services in this Fiscal Year are included in the Department's existing operating 
budget. Funding for subsequent years will be included in the proposed annual operating 
budget, which is subject to Board approval. 
This action is not anticipated to have any Fiscal Impact on unprogrammed District reserves 
in the current Fiscal Year. 

ALTERNATIVES: 

Fill the positions using in-house District recruitment resources. 

RECOMMENDATION: 
Adopt the following motion: 

MOTION: 

That the General Manager or her designee is authorized, in conformance with established 
District procedures governing the use of executive search services to identify suitable 



Board Approval and Authorization 

candidates both inside and outside of California for the positions of Chief Procurement 
Officer, Chief Performance and Audit Officer, and Assistant General Manager, Performance 
and Budget. In addition, the General Manager is authorized to enter into a relocation 
agreement, if necessary, in an amount not to exceed $18,000 for each position, in 
accordance with Management Procedure Number 70, New Employee Relocation Expense 
Reimbursement. 



SAN FRANCISCO BAY AREA RAPID TRANSIT DISTRICT 

TO: 

FROM: 

Board of Directors 

Interim District Secretary 

MEMORANDUM 

DATE: March 2, 2018 

SUBJECT: 2018 Organization of Committees and Special Appointments Revision 

Board Rule 3-3.2 requires the ratification by a majority vote of all members of the Board any 
appointment of any Committee member by the Board President. The Rule includes a provision 
that such appointments shall be submitted directly to the Board. 

In accordance with Board Rule 3-3.2, President Raburn is bringing a revision to the 2018 
Organization of Committees and Special Appointments before the Board of Directors for 
ratification at the Regular Board Meeting on March 8, 2018. President Raburn proposes that 
Director Dufty assume the appointment to the Oversight Board to Successor Agency of San 
Francisco Redevelopment Agency in place of Director Josefowitz. 

Should you have any questions about this change, please contact President Raburn or me at your 
convemence. 

cc: Board Appointed Officers 
Deputy General Manager 
Executive Staff 

MOTION: 

That the Board of Directors ratifies the appointment of Director Bevan Dufty to the Oversight 
Board to Successor Agency of San Francisco Redevelopment Agency. 



SAN FRANCISCO BAY AREA RAPID TRANSIT DISTRICT 

MEMORANDUM 

TO: Board of Directors DATE: March 2, 2018 

FROM: General Manager 

SUBJECT: FY18 Second Quarter Financial Report 

The FY18 Second Quarter Financial Report (October - December 2017) is attached. While the 
net result for the quarter was $4.lM favorable to budget, the negative budget variance in 
passenger trips and fare revenue increased from the first quarter. 

Operating Sources 

Total Ridership was 3.2% under budget for the second quarter of FY18, compared to 2.4% 
under budget in the first quarter, and 3.4% lower than ridership in the same period of FYI 7. 
Despite reduced budget expectations for FYI 8, monthly ridership in FYI 8 is still trending below 
the lower budget. Second quarter FY18 weekday trips were 2.7% below budget and 
weekend/holiday trips were 5.3% below budget. Passenger revenue in the second quarter was 
$3.6M (2.9%) unfavorable, more than the first quarter negative budget variance of $I.OM. Rider 
loss continues to be heavier in the shorter-trip (and thus lower-fare) market, which is why the 
passenger revenue budget variance continues to be slightly better than trips. 

Financial Assistance in the second quarter of FY18 was favorable to budget due to revenue 
from Sales Tax, Property Tax and Low Carbon Fuel Standard (LCFS) credit sales. Sales Tax, 
which included a budgeted 2.1 % rate of growth over FYI 7, was $1.7M (4.9%) favorable to 
budget for the second quarter and is $2.9M favorable to budget year-to-date (YTD). Property 
Tax is $I.OM favorable to budget, YTD, and up 9.7% compared to one year ago. Second quarter 
LCFS credit sales exceeded the budget by $7. 7M, with proceeds allocated to the Sustainability 
program and to operating, increasing Operating to Capital allocations. 

Operating Uses 

Total Expense for the second quarter was under budget, finishing $7. IM (3.9%) favorable. 
Labor and benefits were $2.8M (2.1 %) favorable to budget and non-labor was $3.4M (6.9%) 
under budget. Labor was favorable to budget overall. Regular wages and benefits were favorable 
due mainly to filling only the most critical operating positions. Labor is favorable by 1.4% year
to-date. Non-labor was favorable to budget largely due to timing of Professional & Technical 
and Purchased Transportation expenses, as well as lower than expected electricity prices. Capital 
and Other Allocations were greater than budget due to the $7.7M from LCFS cited above. 



The ridership decline is expected to continue into the second half of FYl 8, with a negative 
impact on operating sources. BART's focus on filling only critical operating positions has helped 
manage labor expenses, however, the-second half of the year is expected to be more financially 
challenging due to pressure to increase staff to address service and quality of life issues. The 
ridership and expense trends may result in an operating deficit by FYI 8 Year Erid. Staff is 
continually monitoring department budgets in order to address potential shortfalls prior to year
end. 

cc: Board Appointed Officers 
Deputy General Manager 
Executive Staff 

pace Crunican 



Quarterly Financial Report 
Second Quarter 

Fiscal Year- 2018 

Revenue Current Quarter 

•Avg weekday trips for the quarter were 414,093, 2.7% under 
budget and 2.8% below the same quarter last year. Total trips for 
the quarter were 3.2% under budget, with weekend and holiday 
trips under budget 5.3%. Net passenger revenue was 2.9% under 
budget. 
•Parking revenue was $0.lM favorable due to Daily Non-Reserve 
and Long Term programs. 
•Other operating revenue was $1.0M favorable mainly due to 
investment income. 

Expense 
•Labor (excluding OPEB) was $2.8M or 2.1% favorable in Q2, 
primarily due to vacancies. Unfunded OPEB does not accrue at 

month end but will be included with year end GASB adjustments. 
•Power was $1.3M favorable due to lower than expected 
electricity prices in the California energy market and timing of a 
PG&E payment that will be reflected next quarter. 
•Other Non Labor $1.4M favorable due to delayed expenses for 
Professional & Technical Service fees ($1.SM). 

Financial Assistance and Allocations 

•Sales Tax for 2Q grew 4.9% over 2QFY17 and was $1.7M favorable 
(~.1% growth budgeted). 
•Property Tax, Other Assistance was $0.9M favorable due to increased 
property tax and federal and local financial assistance. 
•STA was $2.7M unfavorable due to timing, expected to be near budget 
at year end. 
•Low Carbon Fuel Standard (LCFS) Program revenue was $7.7M 

Budaet 

120.7 

8.8 
7.4 

136.8 

131.9 
0.8 

10.8 
7.3 

31.2 
182.0 

(45.1) 

64.1 
22.1 

2.7 
0.0 

(12.7) 
(26.3) 

0.8 
50.7 

favorable to budget due to the sale of credits generated in prior FYs andt-------
high market prices. 
•Debt service was $0. 7M favorable due to savings from refunding. 
•Capital and Other Allocations were $8.2M greater than budget 
primarily due to $7.7M of increased LCFS revenue ($3.9M allocated to 
Sustainability, $3.9M allocated to Operating Reserves per LCFS Policy). 

Net Operating Result 
•The Net Operating Result for Q2 was favorable by $4.lM, due to 
favorable operating expenses. 

5.5 

75.2% 

0.381 

Actual Var 

117.1 -2.9% 

8.9 1.0% 
8.4 13.6% 

134.4 -1.8% 

129.1 2.1% 
0.0 
9.5 12.4% 
6.6 10.4% 

29.8 4.6% 
174.9 3.9% 

(40.5) 10.3%. 

65.8 2.7% 
23.0 4.1% 

0.0 -100.0% 
7.7 0.0% 

(12.0) 5.7% 
(34.5) -31.2% 

0.0 
50.1 -1.1% 

9.6 4.1. 

76.8% 1.6%. 

0.381 -o.1%n 

• 
D 

• 

($ Millions) 
Budget 

Revenue 

Net Passenger Revenue 244.5 

Parking Revenue 17.6 
Other Operating Revenue 14.4 

Total Net Operating Revenue 276.6 

Expense 
Net Labor 266.4 

OPEB Unfunded Liability 1.5 
Electric Power 21.7 

Purchased Transportation 14.6 
Other Non Labor 60.6 

Total Operating Expense 364.8 

Operating Result (Deficit) (88.2) 

Taxes and Financial Assistance 
Sales Tax 127.0 

Property Tax, Other Assistance 24.8 
State Transit Assistance 2.7 

Low Carbon Fuel Std Prog 4.0 
Debt Service (25.4) 

Capital and Other Allocations (60.3) 
OPEB Unfunded Liability Offset 1.5 

Net Financial Assistance 74.3 

Net Operating Result (13.9) 

System Operating Ratio 75.8% 

Rail Cost/ Passenger Mile 0.377 
• Totals may not add due to rounding to the nearest million. 

No Problem 

Caution: Potential Problem/Problem Being Addressed 

Significant Problem 

Year to Date 
Actual Var 

240.0 -1.9% 

17.9 1.7% 
15.9 9.8% 

273.7 -1.0% 

262.7 1.4% 
0.0 

19.8 8.5% 
13.8 5.8% 
54.4 10.1% 

350.7 3.8% 

(77.0) 12.7%. 

129.9 2.3% 
26.3 6.1% 

0.0 -100.0% 
13.1 228.6% 

(24.7) 2.9% 
(68.8) -14.1% 

0.0 
75.9 2.2% 

(1.1) 12.8. 

78.0% 2.2%. 

0.375 0.5%. 



m 
EXECUTIVE DECISION DOCUMENT 

GENERAL MANAGER APPROVAL: 

7Zu/b1. 
DATE: 2/9/2018 

Originator/Prepared by: Sonny Au 

Dept: Planning, Development & 

Construction 

s;g,,tue/D,t~ z./i~/i 8 

GENERAL MANAGER ACTION REQ'D: 
Approve and forward to Board of Directors 

BOARD INITIATED ITEM: No 

Controller/Treasurer District Secretary 

Award of Contract No. OlRQ-150 for Construction of Hayward Maintenance 
Complex Project, Central Warehouse 

PURPOSE: 
To obtain Board authorization for the General Manager to award Contract No. OlRQ-150 
for Construction of Hayward Maintenance Complex Project, Central Warehouse to Clark 
Construction Group - California, LP. 

DISCUSSION: 
The Hayward Maintenance Complex Project (HMC) was adopted by the BART Board of 
Directors on May 26, 2011. The Project will provide expanded and enhanced maintenance 
complex facilities necessary to support the District's future system demands, including the 
new BART revenue vehicles and the Silicon Valley Extension Project. The HMC Project 
consists of the acquisition of and improvements to three parcels on the west side of the 
existing Hayward Yard. Improvement elements include a new Vehicle Overhaul and Heavy 
Repair Shop, a new Component Repair Shop, a new Central Warehouse, a new Maintenance 
and Engineering Shop and Storage Area, as well as new trackwork that provides access to 
these facilities. 

The scope of this Contract consists of construction of the new Central Warehouse. The 
new Central Warehouse will serve as the central logistical facility for BART, which will help 
improve the efficiency of BART operations. Contract provisions include incorporation of 
the District's Project Stabilization Agreement (PSA). 

The Contract was advertised on November 29, 2017 in the District's online vendor portal. A 
total of 84 plan holders downloaded copies of the Contract Documents. A pre-Bid meeting 



Award of Contract No. 0 lRQ-15 0 for Construction of Hayward Maintenance Complex Project, Central Ware (cont.) 

and site visit were conducted on December 15, 2017, with approximately 50 prospective 
Bidders attending. A total of 4 Bids were received. The Bids were publicly opened on 
January 30, 2018. Tabulation of the Bids, including the Engineer's Estimate, is as follows: 

BIDDER LOCATION TOTAL BID PRICE 

Clark Construction Group - California, LP Irvine, CA $49,838,100 

S.J. Amoroso Construction Co., Inc. Redwood Shores, CA $52,057,000 

Proven Management, Inc. Oakland, CA $54,777,777 

USS CAL Builders, Inc. Stanton, CA $59,134,936 * 

Engineer's Estimate NIA $57,916,146 

* Corrected for arithmetical error, which did not impact bid positions 

After review by District staff, the Bid submitted by Clark Construction Group - California, 
LP was deemed the lowest responsive Bid. Furthermore, a review of this Bidder's license, 
business experience and financial capabilities has resulted in a determination that the Bidder 
is responsible. District staff has also determined that the Bidder's Bid of $49,838,100 is fair 
and reasonable. 

The Bid submitted by Clark Construction Group - California, LP contained minor 
irregularities. In accordance with provisions of the Contract Documents governing bid 
evaluation and award, District staff determined that these minor irregularities were-immaterial 
and did not afford an unfair advantage to the Bidder. As a result, District staff determined 
that it was appropriate to waive these minor irregularities in the bid review. 

This Contract was advertised pursuant to the District's Disadvantaged Business Enterprise 
("DBE") Program requirements. The Office of Civil Rights reviewed the scope of work for 
this Contract and determined that there were DBE subcontracting opportunities; therefore, a 
DBE participation goal of 26% was set for this Contract. The low Bidder, Clark 
Construction Group - California, LP, committed to subcontracting 27.9% to DBEs. The 
Office of Civil Rights has determined that Clark Construction Group - California, LP has 
met the DBE participation goal set for this Contract. 

FISCAL IMPACT: 
Funding in the amount of $49,838,100 for the,award of Contract No. OlRQ-150 is included 
in the total budget for FMS# 0 lRQOOO, HMC Program. 

The table below lists funding assigned to the referenced project and is included to track 
funding history against spending authority. Funds needed to meet this request will be 
expended from the following sources: 



Award of Contract No. 0 lRQ-150 for Construction of Hayward Maintenance Complex Project, Central Ware ( cont.) 

Proposed Funding 

FIG 3007 - FTA CA-90-X236 $19,504,600 

FIG 5602 - High Speed Passenger Rail Bond $17,250,000 

FIG 656K & 653E - VTA $19,850,000 

FIG 8524 to 8532 - FY12 to FY18 Operating Capital Alloc $73,186,377 

FIG 881B - Program Income from Cap funds $254,640 

TOTAL $130,045,617 

As of February 14, 2018, the total budget for this project is $130,045,617. BART has 
expended $63,351,590 committed $13,263,599 to-date for other action. This action will 
commit $49,838,100 leaving an available fund balance of$3,592,328 for this project. 

The Office of the Controller/Treasurer certifies that funds are currently available to meet this 
obligation. 

This action is not anticipated to have any fiscal impact on unprogrammed District Reserves. 

ALTERNATIVES: 
The alternatives are to not award the Contract or to rebid the Contract. Not awarding the 
Contract will inhibit the District from providing the necessary support to future system 
demands. Rebidding the Contract will delay execution of the work and may not yield lower 
bid prices, which will potentially result in increased project costs. 

RECOMMENDATION: 
Adoption of the following motion. 

MOTION: 
The General Manager is authorized to award Contract No. OlRQ-150 for Construction of 
the Hayward Maintenance Complex Project, Central Warehouse to Clark Construction 
Group - California, LP for the total Bid price of $49,838,100, pursuant to notification to be 
issued by the General Manager, subject to the District's protest procedures and FTA 
requirements related to protests. 



EXECUTIVE DECISION DOCUMENT 

GENERAL ~l~E

1

R APPROVA~ ? Mtc4-I ;?c ( rl GENERAL MANAGER ACTION REQ'D: 

IL.A,::;f- ¥f. J/r,,___ 
DATE: 10/27/2017 BOARD INITIATED ITEM: No 

Status: Approved Date Created: 10/27/2017 

Procurement of BlackBox Telecommunications System Maintenance Contract 

PURPOSE: To authorize the General Manager to execute a 3-year agreement, with two 1-
year options, with Blackbox Network Services, to provide Telecommunications Systems 
Maintenance. This procurement was conducted under the District's authority to utilize the 
California Department of General Services' California Multiple Award Schedules (CMAS) 
Contract. 

DISCUSSION: This Maintenance Contract will provide parts, material and labor with 24/7 
on-site and remote technical service for BART's 6,000 landlines, 64 telecommunications 
networks, 15 wayside emergency telephone hubs and 911 system. Telecommunications 
maintenance has been performed under contract since the landline phone system was 
upgraded in 1993. Upon approval of this contract, the General Manager will have the 
authority to approve a 3-year agreement with Blackbox Network Services at a cost not to 
exceed of $653,507.00, and to exercise up to two one year options with a total 5 years cost 
not to exceed $1,100,000.00. 

The California Government Code 54205 allows districts such as BART to request that the 
California Department of General Services make purchases of materials, equipment and 
supplies, and obtain maintenance for that equipment on its behalf in accordance with Section 
10298 of the Public Contract Code. Section 10298 of the Public Contract Code permits the 
Director of the California Department of General Services to consolidate the needs of its 
agencies for goods, information technology, and services and establish contracts, master 



Telecommunications Systems Maintenance Contract 

agreements, multiple award schedules, cooperative agreements, and other types of 
agreements that leverage the State of California's buying power. The Department of General 
Services may make its services available, upon agreed terms and conditions, to any District 
empowered to expend public funds for the acquisition of goods, information technology, or 
services. Districts may then enter into agreements, without further competitive bidding, with 
suppliers awarded contracts, master agreements, multiple award schedules, and cooperative 
agreements by the Department of General Services for such services. 

BART Telecommunications Manager, will be responsible for the overall direction and 
management of the agreement executed under the CMAS authority. 

FISCAL IMP ACT: In order to provide BART system wide maintenance for 
Telecommunications services for FYI 8, and FYI 9 and FY20, this subject EDD proposes a 
three year contract at a total cost of $594,097.02, plus standard authority to add up to 10% 
contingency for a not-to-exceed total value of$653,507.00 over the three years (07/01/2017 
-07/01/2020). 

Funds will be budgeted in the Maintenance and Engineering Department, Operating funds, 
(Dept 0802851 M & E Financial Administration, Account 680030, Line Item 99WP District
Wide-Telephones) as follows: 

Proposed 
udget 
YI8 

19 
Y20 

Subtotal 
10% 
Contingency 
Total 

198,032.33 
198,032.33 
198,032.33 
$594,097 
$59,410 

$653,507 

This proposed contract will have no fiscal impact on available un-programmed District 
reserves. 

ALTERNATIVES: The District would need to procure these goods and services by other 
means requiring a new procurement process. 

RECOMMENDATION: Adopt the following motion. 



Telecommunications Systems Maintenance Contract 

MOTION: The General Manager is authorized to execute a 3-year agreement with Blackbox 
Network Services to provide Telecommunications Systems Maintenance services and 
equipment, and at her discretion, to exercise the option to renew for 2 additional 1-year 
terms for a total not to exceed $1,100,000.00. 



SAN FRANCISCO BAY AREA RAPID TRANSIT DISTRICT . 

MEMORANDUM 

TO: Board of Directors DATE: March 2, 2018 

FROM: General Manager 

SUBJECT: Santa Clara County BART Extension: Update on Phase I and Phase II 

Staff will provide an update at the Board of Directors' meeting on March 8, 2018 on the status of the 
negotiations for the BART-VTA Operations & Maintenance Agreement, the outcome of the most 
recent meetings on the tunneling coordination for the Phase II Extension, and an update on Phase I 
construction. 

If you have any questions about these matters, please contact Robert Powers, Deputy General Manager 
at 510-464-6126. 

cc: Board Appointed Officers 
Deputy General Manager 
Executive Staff 

JZu-M. 2--
rrace Crunican 



SAN FRANCISCO BAY AREA RAPID TRANSIT DISTRICT 

MEMORANDUM 

TO: Board of Directors DATE: March 2, 2018 

FROM: General Manager 

SUBJECT: State and Federal Legislative Update 

At the March 8 Board of Directors meeting, staff will present a state and federal update and legislation for 
your consideration. 

Attached are bill analyses and language for six state bills. The legislation has a nexus to BART and 
aligns with the 2018 State and Federal Advocacy Program adopted by the Board of Directors. 

SUPPORT POSITION (5) 
Proposition 69 

AB 2304 (Holden) 
SB 1185 (Hill) 
SB 827 (Wiener) 
SB 831 (Wieckowski) 

NEUTRAL POSITION (1) 
AB 2923 (Chiu and Grayson) 

Motor vehicle fees and taxes: restriction on expenditures: 
appropriations limit 
Transit pass programs: status report 
Firearms: law enforcement agencies: firearm accounting 
Planning and zoning: transit-rich housing bonus 
Land use: accessory dwelling units 

San Francisco Bay Area Rapid Transit District: transit-oriented 
development 

Following the staff presentation, a request will be made of the Board to consider passing the draft motion 
shown below. 

If you have any questions, please contact Rodd Lee, Department Manager, Government and Community 

Relations at 510-464-6235. 711,1,/. L 

Attachments 

cc: Board Appointed Officers 
Deputy General Manager 
Executive Staff 

DRAFT MOTION: 

p Grace Crunican 

That the Board of Directors supports Proposition 69, AB 2304, SB 1185, SB 827, and SB 831; takes a 
neutral position on AB 2923. 



EXECUTIVE DECISION DOCUMENT 

GENERA~RAPPR2L: Z lf{qt1cl-( Zcl fl GENERAL MANAGER ACTION REQ'D: 

I.wt. ~ 
DATE: 2/22/2018 l BOARD INITIATED ITEM: No 

Originator/Prepared by: Roddrick Lee <:~B~,, Controller/Treasnrer District Secretary :;tf De~elations 

~(a111J 
Signature/Date: ~!ti~ [ ~,,,g .Jv,1'1.ot\ 2- -2'?-I~ l [ l [ l 

I . 

State and Federal Legislative Advocacy Contract Extensions 

PURPOSE: 

To authorize the General Manager or her designee to execute (i) a change order to 
Agreement No. 6M7152 with Schott & Associates for State legislative advocacy services, to 
extend the expiration date from April 1, 2018 to April 1, 2020 for a total cost not to exceed 
$287,498.25 and (ii) a change order to Agreement No. 6M7153 with CJ Lakes, LLC for 
Federal legislative services to extend the expiration date from April 1, 2018 to April 1, 2020 
for a total cost not to exceed $504,000. 

DISCUSSION: 

The existing agreements with Schott & Associates and CJ Lake, LLC expire on April 1, 
2018. The proposed extension for each of the existing agreements is from April 1, 2018 to 
April 1, 2020. The proposed extension will allow for legislative advocacy continuity as the 
District executes its State and Federal legislative programs and pursues additional state and 
federal funding. 

Schott & Associates has skillfully and successfully advocated BART's interests before the 
California State Legislature since 1975. Schott & Associates has agreed to continue working 
under the terms of Agreement No. 6M7152. The total proposed cost to provide State 
Legislative Advocacy services for the proposed two year term extension is $287,498.25. 

Under the long-term guidance of Jim Copeland, CJ Lake, LLC has skillfully and successfully 
advocated BART's interests before the U.S. Congress since 1984. CJ Lake, LLC has agreed 
to continue working under the terms of Agreement No. 6M7153. The total proposed cost to 



State and Federal Legislative Advocacy Contract Extensions (cont.) 

provide Federal Legislative Advocacy services for the proposed two year term extension is 
$504,000. 

The Office of the General Counsel will approve the change orders as to form. 

FISCAL IMPACT: 

The subject EDD proposes two year contract extensions at a total cost of $791.498.25 from 
April 1, 2018 to April 1, 2020. 

Funds will be budgeted in the Government and Community Relations Department operating 
budget (Dept 0604366, Account 681300-Professional and Technical Services) as follows: 

Proposed Funding 
FY18* $92,487.00 
FY19 $399,435.00 
FY20** $299, 576.25 

TOTAL $791,498.25 
*FYI 8 funding is not a full Fiscal Year. 
Funding is expected to begin April 1, 
2018. 

**FY20 funding is not a full Fiscal Year. 
Funding is expected to end on April 1, 
2020. 

Funding for services in this Fiscal Year are included in the Government and Community 
Relations Department's existing operating budget. Funding for subsequent years will be 
included in the proposed annual operating budget, which is subject to Board approval. 

This action is not anticipated to have any fiscal impact on unprogrammed District reserves in 
the current Fiscal Year. 

ALTERNATIVE: 

Not authorize the extensions and allow the two Agreements to expire on April 1, 2018. This 
would jeopardize established relationships with the State legislature, Federal legislature, 
Executive Branch decision makers and could diminish the District's prospects for 
successfully accomplishing its State and Federal legislative program as well as adversely 
impact the District's ability to secure additional State and Federal funding. 

RECOMMENDATION: 

Adopt the following motion. 



State and Federal Legislative Advocacy Contract Extensions (cont.) 

MOTION: 

The General Manager or her designee is authorized to execute the following change orders: 

a. a two year extension to Agreement No. 6M7152 with Schott & Associates for State 
legislative advocacy services to April 1, 2020 for a total cost not to exceed 
$287,498.25. 

b. a two year extension to Agreement No. 6M7153 with CJ Lakes, LLC for Federal 
legislative advocacy services to April 1, 2020 for a total cost not to exceed $504,000. 



SAN FRANCISCO BAY AREA RAPID TRANSIT DISTRICT 

MEMORANDUM 

TO: Board of Directors DATE: March 2, 2018 

FROM: General Manager 

SUBJECT: BART to Livermore Extension Project Update - For Information 

Over the next several months, BART staff proposes meeting with the BART Board three times on 
BART to Livermore (LVX), with the objective of completing the California Environmental Quality 
Act (CEQA) process and the Board considering actions on L VX. 

1. March 8, 2018 (information): Presentation on the technical merits of the LVX proposed 
project and build alternatives 

2. April 12, 2018 (information, tentative): Presentation summarizing LVX public input and 
presenting the preliminary staff L VX recommendation 

3. May/June 2018 ( action): Board to consider certifying the L VX Environmental Impact 
Report (EIR) and taking actions on L VX 

On July 31, 2017, BART released the BART to Livermore Extension Project Draft EIR. BART 
received approximately 500 comments on the Draft EIR. BART staff is preparing a Final EIR 
which is expected to be released in May 2018. 

On February 21, 2018, BART released the BART to Livermore Extension Proposed Project and 
Build Alternatives Evaluation Report (Evaluation Report). The Evaluation Report compares the 
benefits and costs of the Proposed Project and build alternatives across several technical metrics 
and is available on-line at https://www.bart.gov/about/projects/liv. BART staff will present key 
information from the Evaluation Report to the BART Board on March 8, 2018. 

The Evaluation Report supplements the information provided in the Draft EIR. The Evaluation 
Report is not a part of the EIR itself - the public comment period for the EIR has ended, and any 
stakeholder input received by BART in response to the Evaluation Report will not be considered 
as comments on the EIR. 

BART staff is conducting a public outreach effort to obtain feedback on the Proposed Project 
and build alternatives. Public open houses were held on February 26 in Oakland and February 27 
in Livermore. BART staff will be presenting at the following public meetings: 



• March 6, Pleasanton City Council 
• March 14, Tri-Valley San Joaquin Valley Regional Rail Authority 
• Mar 20, Dublin City Council 

In addition, BART staff is providing briefings to community members, stakeholder groups and 
policymakers. 

Please contact Carl Holmes (510) 464-7592 if you have any questions. 

cc: Board Appointed Officers 
Deputy General Manager 
Executive Staff 

prace Crunican 



T(>; 

FROMi 

S~ FRANCISCO &\Y AREA RAPID. TRANSIT DISTRICT 

Boru:d t>iDfrectors 

SUBJECTi; BART Citizen OversightModelEvaluatiQn 

Purs~t tp. Chapter )~Ot ofthe l3ARt Citizen: Dversight Modet(Nif odel), the B.oard ofl)(rectors (Bo~d); 
with. inpqt from tJ,.e. ij,AllJPplice Citizen Review Board (BPC:RB}~ Independent Police Auditor (IPA), 
BAR! Police Assodations (BPOA and BPM,A); coIUplaip.ants~ ,and: the puhlkf will evaluate '.the, BART 
:Police citizen ,oversight structure afterJtlie first yeat of implementation to defel!)lip,e w:li.eth~r fue need. exists. 

· to ma.ke changes amll<>t otherwi~e make 'adjustments to the system to improve its continqee;t perfo,;rnm1ce, 
Chapter J.,Ol furtherp,i,:ovi~es that thi$ ev1ih.1~ifon shttll in noway be hitendedto eHtbinate the BART Police 
citizen oversight structure. · 

4\.JJtder f<> fa.ciHfo~ the reYiew and. evaluation requited. hy the Model; and f,lft~r significant rese~cl.r Md 
·extensiye di§CUS$iQP:, the Office Q;f the ltxdependent l>dlice :Auditor (OIP,\) engaged the. OIR Group tq 
eValuate the. system. and generate a repqrj; fQl' your COIJ~Iif;ieration. 'J'he .evah.Jation commenced., in January 
2017 a,1d a final report was generated and submitted Jn June 2PJ 7 (with ap A44etl4l1ln ht July 2017) 
mc}µ<U,p.g a, totw.. of $4 recQrorrtettdations for impro:vement. The report was distributed ru;id disc.ussed at a 
Julyl 8, 2017 Operatkms, Safety aq.d WorkfQtc¢'$ta,1ding Colli'tmttee.meeting ®d again at Boatd meefings 
.on.August 10~ 201 Tand'Februru:y,?2,;201~, · · · 

Ol!>A. was i.nstructe4 tore~Jo;the Board Wt:tltaMotion to vote whether to accept ijlld adopt 39 ofth~ S.4 
wconnnencmtions irmluded in the OIR Rep,ott to be implemented by OIPA as practicaL Attachecl fq tlli~ 
memorandum is .~ Mo1:ion w,h,icl,, if adoptec.t by; fue Board, will rati:fy adoption of the numbered 
recommendations listed ufthe Motion. · · 

()IPA was also insttuoted to presen,t the,temai.nfu~ 15 OIR recommendations: to the Boru:d for further 
discussion. OIP A is. prep~ed to respqud to your ~foWled. ioq\liries regardfog each of'the remaining 15 
recommendations~ the.position of the .General Manager {GJyf), BART PoUc¢ Department (BPD) .chief 
R~ja&, llPMA., BPCJ03,. andBPOA as,estaollshed in advanceofyour·F~brµazy 2.4, 4Ql8 m~~:ting; theitate.d 
ri:ttkmal~ ofeac)l en,tity for its positj.011,,0IR Group's rationale for eachrecommendatfon, aq.<l to di$cuss and 
clarify factual and .P!tlPAP~ WJ:l$i!fer~ffo1w, · 

'.RespoJiSive to . the Boatd;S request to . group the remaitµJlg lS .repommendati~ms into c1:1.teiories for 
J.li$ctission, ()IPA ha$· detebbined that 6 tec.omme:ndations can grouped as in ~ ;~I Aufuodty/~ 8. ~e in ,te 
~'Reportingt ~ i.lle l~J$:, 4:1 t~ tit~ review of Use ofFotceJrtcfdents. 

If you have anyquestio:ns, please feel :th;e to contac,t me 1,tt ($.10) 87~7477; 

·~ .. 

cc: Board Appointed Of:tfoers 



RATIFICATION OF 39 RECOMMENDATIONS FOR IMPROVEMENT TO THE BART 
POLICE OVERSIGHT STRUCTURE 

MOTION: 

That the Board of Directors ratifies the acceptance, adoption, and implementation as practical by 
the BART Office of the Independent Police Auditor of the 39 recommendations listed below that 
were submitted by the OIR Group in its Independent Review of the BART Police Oversight 
Structure dated June 2017 with an Addendum dated July 2017. 

OIR Group Evaluation Report Recommendations: 
2,5,6, 7,8,9, 10, 11, 13, 17, 18, 19,20,23,24,26,28,29,30,33,34,35,36,37, 
40,41,42,43,44,45,46,47,48,49,50,51,52,53,54. 





0


Quarterly Service Performance Review
Second Quarter, FY 2018
October - December, 2017


Operations & Safety Committee
March 8, 2018











SUMMARY CHART 2nd QUARTER FY 2018
    PERFORMANCE INDICATORS CURRENT QUARTER PRIOR QTR ACTUALS YEAR TO DATE


LAST THIS QTR
ACTUAL STANDARD STATUS QUARTER LAST YEAR ACTUAL STANDARD STATUS


Average Ridership - Weekday 426,492 439,970 NOT MET 419,978 425,944 421,626 431,229 NOT MET
Customers on Time
   Peak 89.36% 95.00% NOT MET 86.95% 87.53% 88.16% 95.00% NOT MET
   Daily 91.75% 95.00% NOT MET 90.04% 90.09% 90.89% 95.00% NOT MET
Trains on Time
   Peak 84.07%       N/A N/A 79.68% 82.28% 81.88% N/A N/A
   Daily 86.13% 92.00% NOT MET 83.14% 84.66% 84.63% 92.0% NOT MET
Peak Period Transbay Car Throughput
   AM Peak 95.05% 97.50% NOT MET 96.68% 98.57% 95.87% 97.50% NOT MET
   PM Peak 95.27% 97.50% NOT MET 95.38% 99.16% 95.33% 97.50% NOT MET
Car Availability at 4 AM (0400) 590 595 NOT MET 575 592 582 595 NOT MET
Mean Time Between Service Delays 4,627 4,000 MET 3,810 5,322 4,178 4,000 MET
Elevators in Service
   Station 98.73% 98.00% MET 98.10% 98.23% 98.42% 98.00% MET
   Garage 98.53% 98.00% MET 96.40% 95.63% 97.47% 98.00% NOT MET
Escalators in Service
   Street 91.67% 95.00% NOT MET 92.10% 92.27% 91.88% 95.00% NOT MET
   Platform 95.80% 96.00% NOT MET 96.50% 96.83% 96.15% 96.00% MET
Automatic Fare Collection
   Gates 99.56% 99.00% MET 99.51% 99.07% 99.53% 99.00% MET
   Vendors 95.84% 95.00% MET 95.79% 95.68% 95.82% 95.00% MET
Wayside Train Control System 1.49 1.00 NOT MET 2.00 1.92 1.75 1.00 NOT MET
Computer Control System 0.10 0.08 NOT MET 0.063 0.157 0.080 0.08 MET
Traction Power 0.12 0.20 MET 0.11 0.46 0.12 0.20 MET
Track 0.10 0.30 MET 0.13 0.13 0.12 0.30 MET
Transportation 0.41 0.50 MET 0.69 0.42 0.55 0.50 NOT MET
Environment Outside Stations 2.64 2.80 NOT MET 2.62 2.75 2.63 2.80 NOT MET
Environment Inside Stations 2.53 3.00 NOT MET 2.52 2.63 2.52 3.00 NOT MET
Station Vandalism 2.88 3.19 NOT MET 2.90 2.98 2.89 3.19 NOT MET
Station Services 2.84 3.06 NOT MET 2.86 2.88 2.85 3.06 NOT MET
Train P.A. Announcements 3.09 3.17 NOT MET 3.06 3.10 3.08 3.17 NOT MET
Train Exterior Appearance 2.79 3.00 NOT MET 2.78 2.83 2.79 3.00 NOT MET
Train Interior Appearance 2.80 3.00 NOT MET 2.85 2.89 2.82 3.00 NOT MET
Train Temperature 3.10 3.12 NOT MET 3.06 3.11 3.08 3.12 NOT MET
Customer Complaints
   Complaints per 100,000 Passenger Trips 6.84 5.07 NOT MET 7.74 6.53 7.29 5.07 NOT MET


Safety
   Station Incidents/Million Patrons 1.68 5.50 MET 1.56 2.11 1.62 5.50 MET
   Vehicle Incidents/Million Patrons 0.47 1.30 MET 0.62 0.26 0.55 1.30 MET
   Lost Time Injuries/Illnesses/Per OSHA 7.66 7.50 NOT MET 7.24 6.56 7.24 7.50 MET
   OSHA-Recordable Injuries/Illnesses/Per OSHA 11.07 13.30 MET 12.99 10.80 12.99 13.30 MET
   Unscheduled Door Openings/Million Car Miles 0.100 0.300 MET 0.050 0.110 0.075 0.300 MET
   Rule Violations Summary/Million Car Miles 0.210 0.500 MET 0.150 0.110 0.180 0.500 MET


Police
   BART Police Presence 11% 11.9% NOT MET 11% 11% 11% 11.9% NOT MET
   Quality of Life per million riders 67.79 N/A N/A 99.45 60.08 83.62 N/A N/A
   Crimes Against Persons per million riders 3.49 2.00 NOT MET 3.15 2.24 3.32 2.00 NOT MET
   Auto Burglaries per 1,000 parking spaces 6.70 8.00 MET 6.26 4.33 6.48 8.00 MET
   Auto Thefts per 1,000 parking spaces 2.29 6.00 MET 2.04 2.56 2.17 6.00 MET
   Police Response Time per Emergency Incident (Minutes) 5.18 5.00 NOT MET 5.30 6.29 5.24 5.00 NOT MET
   Bike Thefts (Quarterly Total and YTD Quarterly Average) 88 150.00 MET 125 109 107 150.00 MET


LEGEND:                                                                                       Goal met        Goal not met but w ithin 5%   Goal not met by more than 5%











4


FY18 Second Quarter Overview


 Ridership decline continues at about same levels as last quarter, 
weekends worse


 Continued gains in train service reliability, Ops and BPD working 
together to improve further


 Equipment Reliability:  Car, Track and Traction Power met; Computer 
Control System and Train Control not met


 Equipment Availability:  Elevators (Station and Garage), Ticket 
Machines and Fare Gates met; Escalators (Platform and Street) and 
Cars not met


 Passenger Environment:  2 of 4 Station indicators improved, none met 
goal; 3 of 4 Train indicators improved, none met goal


 Complaints decreased







5


Customer Ridership
Av


er
ag


e 
W


ee
kd


ay
 T


rip
s


370,000


380,000


390,000


400,000


410,000


420,000


430,000


440,000


450,000


460,000


470,000


480,000


Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar April May June July Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec


Results


Goal


Total ridership decreased by 3.4% compared to same quarter last year
 Average weekday ridership (414,093) down 2.8% from same 


quarter last year
 Core weekday ridership down by 2.7% from same quarter last year
 SFO Extension weekday ridership down by 3.8% from same quarter 


last year
 Saturday and Sunday down by 9.0% and 9.4%, respectively, over 


same quarter last year







6


On-Time Service - Customer


O
n-


Ti
m


e 
Se


rv
ic


e-
C


us
to


m
er


60%


70%


80%


90%


100%


Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar April May June July Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec


Results


Goal


 91.8%, 95.00% goal not met, up 1.7% from prior quarter
 Delay events causing the most late trains:


1 4-Dec-17 W. Oakland MUX (Recurring Failures) Equip 130
2 16-Dec-17 Powell Train Struck A Patron On Trackway People 109
3 12-Dec-17 T-Bay Tube Brake Vehicle 86
4 16-Nov-17 Systemwide Weather (Wet Tracks) Weather 83
5 14-Oct-17 24th Street Person on Trackway and Under Train People 72
6 31-Oct-17 Hayward FOTF (OOS Train Stopped/No Movement Vehicle 52
7 9-Nov-17 H.Yd. I-lk SLd False Occupancy (Routing Impaired) Equip 48
8 24-Oct-17 Balboa Park MUX (Blown Fuse/Replaced) Equip 41
9 18-Oct-17 H.Yd. I-lk SLd Routing (VHLC Logic Controller/PC Board) Equip 41
10 11-Oct-17 S Br. I-Lk (N) ICS/Net.Com/BART.Net Comm Link Failures) Equip 40







7


On-Time Service - Train
O


n-
Ti


m
e 


Se
rv


ic
e 


-T
ra


in


60%


70%


80%


90%


100%


Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb MarAprilMayJuneJuly AugSept Oct Nov Dec


Results


Goal


 86.1%, 92.00% goal not met; up 3.0% from prior quarter
 45.5% of late trains were late due to multiple small delays, each under 5 minutes
 Categorization of late trains due to a known delay event of 5 minutes or greater: 


POLICE ACTIONS 22.1% of delayed trains
TRAIN CONTROL 16.1% of delayed trains
RAIL CAR 12.6% of delayed trains
MULTIPLE CAUSE 7.3% of delayed trains
VANDALISM 6.1% of delayed trains
MEDICAL EMERGENCY 4.9% of delayed trains
PERSON ON TRACKWAY 4.6% of delayed trains
OPERATIONS 4.4% of delayed trains
TRAIN STRUCK PATRON 3.1% of delayed trains
WEATHER 2.3% of delayed trains







8


0.0


0.5


1.0


1.5


2.0


2.5


3.0


3.5


4.0


4.5


5.0


Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar April May June July Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec


Results


Goal


Wayside Train Control System


 Goal not met but better than previous quarter – Actual 1.49 / Goal 1.00
 The improvement can be attributed to the restructuring of the staffing plan. A 


complete rebid in early October allowed for greater focus on PM and repairs 
during the grave shift. Compliance percentages have increased and reliability of 
assets are showing improvement as a result.


Includes False Occupancy & Routing, Delays Per 100 Train Runs


D
el


ay
ed


  T
ra


in
s  


pe
r 1


00
 T


ra
in


 T
rip


s







9


Computer Control System


0.0
0.1
0.2
0.3
0.4
0.5
0.6
0.7
0.8
0.9
1.0


Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar April May June July Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec


Results


Goal


Includes ICS computer & SORS, Delays per 100 train runs


D
el


ay
ed


  T
ra


in
s  


pe
r 1


00
 T


ra
in


 T
rip


s


 Goal not met – Actual 0.1 / Goal 0.08
 October delay caused by faulty power supply on Net.com at San 


Bruno.







10


0.0


0.5


1.0


1.5


2.0


2.5


Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar April MayJune July Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec


Results


Goal


Traction Power 
Includes Coverboards, Insulators, 


Third Rail Trips, Substations, 
Delays Per 100 Train Runs


D
el


ay
ed


  T
ra


in
s  


pe
r 1


00
 T


ra
in


 T
rip


s


 Goal met – Actual .12 / Goal .2
 Platform insulator replacement scheduled for late April 2018 at 


Balboa Park







11


0.0


0.5


1.0


1.5


Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar April May June July Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec


Results


Goal


Transportation


Includes Late Dispatches, Controller-Train 
Operator-Tower Procedures and Other 
Operational Delays Per 100 Train Runs


D
el


ay
ed


  T
ra


in
s  


pe
r 1


00
 T


ra
in


 T
rip


s


 Goal met – Actual .41 / Goal .5







12


 Goal met – Actual .10 / Goal .30


Track


Includes Rail, Track Tie, 
Misalignment, Switch, 


Delays Per 100 Train Runs


D
el


ay
ed


  T
ra


in
s  


pe
r 1


00
 T


ra
in


 T
rip


s


0.0


0.5


1.0


1.5


2.0


2.5


3.0


Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec


Results


Goal







13


Car Equipment - Reliability
M


ea
n 


Ti
m


e 
B


et
w


ee
n 


Se
rv


ic
e 


D
el


ay
s (


H
ou


rs
)


2500


3000


3500


4000


4500


5000


5500


6000


6500


7000


7500


Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar April May June July Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec


Results


Goal


 Goal met – MTBSD 4,627 hours / Goal 4,000 hours







14


Car Equipment –
Availability @ 0400 hours


N
um


be
r o


f C
ar


s


400


425


450


475


500


525


550


575


600


625


Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar April May June July Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec


Results


Goal


Goal not met – 590 Actual vs. 595 Required
 40 cars out of service due to damaged collector shoes. Mainline incident on 


Dec. 4th


 4 accident cars (3 coupler damage), 6 Berryessa test cars







15


80%


85%


90%


95%


100%


Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar April May June July Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec


Active


Goal


All


Elevator Availability - Stations


 Goal 98%.  Goal met – Actual 98.7% 
 Seeking contractor support to perform door replacements 


on several Elev during 3rd /4th Qtr.







16


Elevator Availability - Garage


80%


85%


90%


95%


100%


Oct NovDec Jan FebMarAprilMayJuneJulyAugSeptOct NovDec


Results


Goal


 Goal 98%. Goal met - Actual 98.5%
 Pleasant Hill Garage Renovation Set to Begin early Feb.







17


60%


70%


80%


90%


100%


Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar April May June July Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec


Results


Goal


Weighted
Availability


Escalator Availability - Street


 Goal 95%. Goal not met - Actual 91.7%
 3 major repairs (2 Bullgears / 1 Chain Job)
 Extended outage at Warm Springs on unit under warranty
 O&K Controller Replacement Project


• First two completed
• One in progress (16th Street), projected completion 4/18


 6 Addt’l Chain Jobs required in 2018







18


60%


70%


80%


90%


100%


Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar April May June July Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec


Results


Goal


Weighted
Availability


Escalator Availability - Platform


 Goal 96%. Goal not met - Actual 95.8%
 Civic Center (P3) machine shop took an excessive amount of time on the 


bullgear
 Balboa Park (P2) unique “one of a kind” Fujitec unit, required contractor 


support
 Civic Center (P1) currently undergoing a major repair
 Montgomery (P3) next downtown chain replacement
 8 Addt’l chain jobs required in 2018 (4 are downtown Platforms) 







19


AFC Gate Availability


60%


70%


80%


90%


100%


Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar April May June July Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec


Results


Goal


 Goal met  - Actual 99.6% / Goal 99.0%







20


60%


70%


80%


90%


100%


Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar April May June July Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec


Results


Goal


AFC Vendor Availability


 Goal met  - Actual 95.8% / Goal 95.0%
 Parking Validation Machines Availability – 99.8%
 Added minimum of 2 Clipper Vendor Machines per station







21


2.75 2.73 2.76 2.62 2.64


1


2


3


4


FY2017
Qtr 2


FY2017
Qtr 3


FY2017
Qtr 4


FY2018
Qtr 1


FY2018
Qtr 2


Results


Goal


Environment - Outside Stations


Composite rating of:
Walkways & Entry Plaza Cleanliness (50%)  2.52
BART Parking Lot Cleanliness (25%)           2.85
Appearance of BART Landscaping (25%)     2.67↑


 Goal not met, 
 Cleanliness ratings of either Excellent or 


Good:
Walkways/Entry Plazas:  53.7%       
Parking Lots:  70.2%
Landscaping Appearance:  61.9%


Ratings guide: 
4 = Excellent
3 = Good
2.80 = Goal
2 = Only Fair 
1 = Poor


↓ indicates a statistically significant decrease from the prior quarter







22


2.63 2.62 2.62 2.52 2.53


1


2


3


4


FY2017 Qtr 2 FY2017 Qtr 3 FY2017 Qtr 4 FY2018 Qtr 1 FY2018 Qtr 2


Results


Goal


Environment - Inside Stations


 Goal not met
 Cleanliness ratings of either Excellent or Good: 


Station Platform:  63.1%; Other Station Areas: 53.4% 
Restrooms:  34.7% Elevators:  46.7%


Composite rating for Cleanliness of:
Station Platform (60%) 2.66
Other Station Areas (20%) 2.48
Restrooms (10%)  2.04
Elevator Cleanliness (10%) 2.30


Ratings guide: 
4 = Excellent
3 = Good
3.00 = Goal
2 = Only Fair 
1 = Poor


↓ indicates a statistically significant decrease from the prior quarter







23


Station Vandalism


2.98 2.93 2.95 2.90 2.88


1


2


3


4


FY2017 Qtr 2 FY2017 Qtr 3 FY2017 Qtr 4 FY2018 Qtr 1 FY2018 Qtr 2


Results


Goal


 Goal not met
 73.4% of those surveyed ranked this category as 


either Excellent or Good


Station Kept Free of Graffiti


Ratings guide: 
4 = Excellent
3.19 = Goal
3 = Good
2 = Only Fair 
1 = Poor







24


Station Services


2.88 2.90 2.91 2.86 2.84


1


2


3


4


FY2017 Qtr 2 FY2017 Qtr 3 FY2017 Qtr 4 FY2018 Qtr 1 FY2018 Qtr 2


Results


Goal


Composite rating of:
Station Agent Availability (65%) 2.80
Brochures Availability (35%) 2.90


 Goal not met 
 Availability ratings of either Excellent or Good:


Station Agents:  70.1%
Brochures:  73.7%


Ratings guide: 
4 = Excellent
3.06 = Goal
3 = Good
2 = Only Fair 
1 = Poor







25


Train P.A. Announcements


3.10 3.10 3.09 3.06 3.09


1


2


3


4


FY2017 Qtr 2 FY2017 Qtr 3 FY2017 Qtr 4 FY2018 Qtr 1 FY2018 Qtr 2


Results


Goal


 Goal not met
 Announcement ratings of either Excellent or Good:


Arrivals:        78.7% 
Transfers:      76.3% 
Destinations: 84.0%


Composite rating of:
P.A. Arrival Announcements (33%) 3.06
P.A. Transfer Announcements (33%) 3.03
P.A. Destination Announcements (33%) 3.18


Ratings guide: 
4 = Excellent
3.17 = Goal
3 = Good
2 = Only Fair 
1 = Poor







26


Train Exterior Appearance


Goal not met
70.7% of those surveyed ranked this category as either Excellent or Good


2.83 2.82 2.79 2.78 2.79


1


2


3


4


FY2017 Qtr 2 FY2017 Qtr 3 FY2017 Qtr 4 FY2018 Qtr 1 FY2018 Qtr 2


Results


Goal


Ratings guide: 
4 = Excellent
3.00 = Goal
3 = Good
2 = Only Fair 
1 = Poor







27


Train Interior Cleanliness


Composite rating of:
Train interior cleanliness (60%) 2.52 ↓


Train interior kept free of graffiti (40%) 3.22 ↓


 Goal not met
 Train Interior ratings of either Excellent or Good:


Train Interior Cleanliness:  54.5%; Graffiti-free:  87.3%


2.89 2.86 2.85 2.85 2.80


1


2


3


4


FY2017 Qtr 2 FY2017 Qtr 3 FY2017 Qtr 4 FY2018 Qtr 1 FY2018 Qtr 2


Results


Goal


Ratings guide: 
4 = Excellent
3 = Good
3.00 = Goal
2 = Only Fair 
1 = Poor


↓ indicates a statistically significant decrease from the prior quarter







28


Train Temperature


3.11 3.13 3.11 3.06 3.10


1


2


3


4


FY2017 Qtr
2


FY2017 Qtr
3


FY2017 Qtr
4


FY2018 Qtr
1


FY2018 Qtr
2


Results


Goal


Comfortable Temperature Onboard Train


 Goal not met
 83.2 % of those surveyed rated this category as either 


Excellent or Good


Ratings guide: 
4 = Excellent
3.12 = Goal
3 = Good
2 = Only Fair 
1 = Poor







29


Customer Complaints
Pe


r 1
00


,0
00


 C
us


to
m


er
s


0
2
4
6
8


10
12
14


Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar April May June July Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec


Results


Goal


Complaints Per 100,000 Customers


 Total complaints lodged this period decreased 346 (14.5%) from last quarter, up 24 
(1.2%) when compared with the second quarter FY17. 


 Complaint numbers increased in the categories of Announcements, AFC, M&E, 
Parking, Passenger Information, and Train Cleanliness while decreases appear in 
Bike Program, Personnel, Police Services, Policies, Quality of Life, Service, 
Station Cleanliness and Trains.


 “Compliments” show an increase with 112, up from 96 last quarter (one year ago 
these numbered 86).







30


0


1


2


3


4


5


6


7


8


9


10


FY2017 Qtr 2 FY2017 Qtr 3 FY2017 Qtr 4 FY2018 Qtr 1 FY2018 Qtr 2


Results


Benchmark


Patron Safety:
Station Incidents per Million Patrons


St
at


io
n 


In
ci


de
nt


s/
M


ill
io


n 
Pa


tro
ns


 Goal met







31


0


1


2


3


4


FY2017 Qtr 2 FY2017 Qtr 3 FY2017 Qtr 4 FY2018 Qtr 1 FY2018 Qtr 2


Results


Benchmark


Patron Safety
Vehicle Incidents per Million Patrons


Ve
hi


cl
e 


In
ci


de
nt


s/
M


ill
io


n 
Pa


tro
ns


 Goal met







32


Employee Safety:
Lost Time Injuries/Illnesses
per OSHA Incidence Rate


Lo
st


 T
im


e 
In


ju
rie


s/
Ill


ne
ss


 p
er


 O
SH


A
 ra


te


0


2


4


6


8


10


12


14


16


FY2017 Qtr 2 FY2017 Qtr 3 FY2017 Qtr 4 FY2018 Qtr 1 FY2018 Qtr 2


Results


Benchmark


 Goal no met







33


Employee Safety:
OSHA-Recordable Injuries/Illnesses


per OSHA Incidence Rate


0


4


8


12


16


20


24


FY2017 Qtr 2 FY2017 Qtr 3 FY2017 Qtr 4 FY2018 Qtr 1 FY2018 Qtr 2


Results


Benchmark


O
SH


A
 R


ec
or


da
bl


e 
In


ju
rie


s/
Ill


ne
ss


es
/O


SH
A


 ra
te


 Goal met







34


0.000


0.100


0.200


0.300


0.400


0.500


0.600


0.700


0.800


0.900


1.000


FY2017 Qtr 2 FY2017 Qtr 3 FY2017 Qtr 4 FY2018 Qtr 1 FY2018 Qtr 2


Results


Benchmark


Operating Safety:
Unscheduled Door Openings per Million Car Miles


U
ns


ch
ed


ul
ed


 D
oo


r O
pe


ni
ng


s/
M


ill
io


n 
C


ar
 M


ile
s


 Goal met







35


Operating Safety:
Rule Violations per Million Car Miles


0.0


0.5


1.0


1.5


FY2017 Qtr 2 FY2017 Qtr 3 FY2017 Qtr 4 FY2018 Qtr 1 FY2018 Qtr 2


Results


Benchmark


R
ul


e 
V


io
la


tio
ns


 p
er


 M
ill


io
n 


C
ar


 M
ile


s


 Goal met







36


10.9%
9.6%


10.4% 10.8% 10.5%


0%


10%


20%


FY2017 Qtr 2 FY2017 Qtr 3 FY2017 Qtr 4 FY2018 Qtr 1 FY2018 Qtr 2


Results


Goal (11.9% Avg.)


BART Police Presence


 Goal not met
Police seen on train 5.0%
Police seen outside the station 13.9%
Police seen in the station 11.2%
Police seen on train after 7:00PM 6.2%
Police seen outside the station after 7:00PM 14.7%
Police seen in the station after 7:00PM 11.8%







37


Quality of Life*
C


rim
es


 p
er


 M
ill


io
n 


Tr
ip


s


*Quality of Life Violations include: Disturbing the Peace, Vagrancy, Public Urination,
Fare Evasion, Loud Music/Radios, Smoking, Eating/Drinking and Expectoration


 Quality of Life incidents are down from the last quarter but up 
from the corresponding quarter of the prior fiscal year.  


0


50


100


150


200


250


FY2017 Qtr 2 FY2017 Qtr 3 FY2017 Qtr 4 FY2018 Qtr 1 FY2018 Qtr 2


Results







38


Crimes Against Persons
(Homicide, Rape, Robbery, and Aggravated Assault)


C
rim


es
 p


er
 M


ill
io


n 
Tr


ip
s


0


1


2


3


4


FY2017 Qtr 2 FY2017 Qtr 3 FY2017 Qtr 4 FY2018 Qtr 1 FY2018 Qtr 2


Results


Goal


 Goal not met
 Crimes against persons are up from the last quarter and up from the 


corresponding quarter of the prior fiscal year. 







39


Auto Burglary
C


rim
es


 p
er


 1
00


0 
Pa


rk
in


g 
Sp


ac
es


0


2


4


6


8


10


12


FY2017 Qtr 2 FY2017 Qtr 3 FY2017 Qtr 4 FY2018 Qtr 1 FY2018 Qtr 2


Results


Goal


 Goal met
 The number of incidents per thousand parking spaces are unchanged from 


last quarter and up from the corresponding quarter of the prior fiscal year.







40


Auto Theft
C


rim
es


 p
er


 1
00


0 
Pa


rk
in


g 
Sp


ac
es


0


2


4


6


8


10


12


FY2017 Qtr 2 FY2017 Qtr 3 FY2017 Qtr 4 FY2018 Qtr 1 FY2018 Qtr 2


Results


Goal


 Goal met
 The number of incidents per thousand parking spaces are up from last 


quarter and down from the corresponding quarter of the prior fiscal year.







41


0


2


4


6


8


10


FY2017
Qtr 2


FY2017
Qtr 3


FY2017
Qtr 4


FY2018
Qtr 1


FY2018
Qtr 2


Result
s


Goal


Average Emergency Response Time
R


es
po


ns
e 


Ti
m


e 
(in


 M
in


ut
es


)


 The average Emergency Response Time goal was not met for the quarter 
but improved from the prior quarter and down from the corresponding 
quarter of the prior fiscal year.







42


Bike Theft
To


ta
l  


Q
ua


rte
rly


 B
ik


e 
Th


ef
ts


0


50


100


150


200


250


300


FY2017
Qtr 2


FY2017
Qtr 3


FY2017
Qtr 4


FY2018
Qtr 1


FY2018
Qtr 2


Results


Goal


 Goal met
 88 bike thefts for current quarter, down 37  from last quarter.





		Quarterly Service Performance Review�Second Quarter, FY 2018�October - December, 2017

		Slide Number 2

		Slide Number 3

		Slide Number 4

		Slide Number 5

		Customer Ridership

		Slide Number 7

		Slide Number 8

		Wayside Train Control System

		Computer Control System

		Traction Power 

		Transportation

		Track

		Car Equipment - Reliability

		Car Equipment – �Availability @ 0400 hours

		Elevator Availability - Stations

		Elevator Availability - Garage

		Escalator Availability - Street

		Escalator Availability - Platform

		AFC Gate Availability

		AFC Vendor Availability

		Slide Number 22

		Environment - Inside Stations

		Station Vandalism

		Station Services

		Train P.A. Announcements

		Train Exterior Appearance

		Train Interior Cleanliness

		Train Temperature

		Customer Complaints

		Slide Number 31

		Slide Number 32

		Slide Number 33

		Slide Number 34

		Operating Safety:�Unscheduled Door Openings per Million Car Miles

		Operating Safety:�Rule Violations per Million Car Miles

		BART Police Presence

		Slide Number 38

		Slide Number 39

		Slide Number 40

		Slide Number 41

		Average Emergency Response Time

		Slide Number 43






1


BART to Livermore – Project Update
March 8, 2018







2


Meeting Topics


• BART to Livermore status and schedule


• Evaluation of proposed project and build alternatives


• Tri-Valley San Joaquin Valley Regional Rail Authority







3


BART to Livermore (LVX) Status
• Jul 31, 2017: Draft EIR Released


• Oct 16, 2017: Comment Period Closed


• Feb 21, 2018: Released Evaluation of Alternatives Report 
bart.gov/Livermore


• Feb-Mar, 2018: Public Outreach


• May 2018: Release Final EIR


* Tentative


• Mar 8, 2018: Evaluation of Alternatives to Board


• Apr 12, 2018:* Preliminary LVX Recommendation to Board


• May/June 2018: Board Consider Certifying EIR and Taking LVX Action


BART Board







4


Schedule Considerations
• Livermore required to adopt a Ridership Development Plan 


(RDP) before BART can adopt a project


• Livermore plans to adopt RDP May 14, 2018*


• AB758 created Tri-Valley San Joaquin Valley Regional Rail 
Authority (TVSJVRRA)


• TVSJVRRA can not infringe on BART's process to plan, develop, and 
deliver a BART extension to Isabel


• Restriction expires July 1, 2018 if the BART does not adopt a BART 
extension to Isabel by June 30, 2018


* Tentative







5


Public Outreach (Feb – Mar 2018)
• Objectives


• Share Evaluation Report findings
• Obtain feedback


• Feb 26:  Oakland public open house


• Feb 27:  Livermore public open house


• Mar 6:  Pleasanton Council


• Mar 14:  Tri-Valley San Joaquin Valley Rail Authority


• Mar 20:  Dublin Council


• Meet with key neighborhood and stakeholder groups


• Meet with key policymakers







6


Proposed Project
Conventional BART to Isabel







7


Alt 1 Diesel Multiple Unit (DMU) or 
Electric Multiple Unit (EMU)







8


Alt 2 Express Bus/
Bus Rapid Transit (BRT)







9


Alt 2 Express Bus/BRT at
Dublin/Pleasanton Station


Above shows cross-section at the station







10


Express Bus/BRT Example
Harbor Transitway, Los Angeles







11


Alt 3  Enhanced Bus







12


Transit Travel Time


80


57 60 66 71


90


71 74 74
90


124
113 116 117


124


0


20


40


60


80


100


120


140


Isabel


Downtown


Column1


Conventional
BART


DMU/EMU Express
Bus/BRT


Enhanced BusNo Project


From Selected Locations to Downtown SF (AM peak period)


Tr
av


el
 T


im
e 


(m
in


ut
es


)


Station


Livermore


Downtown
Tracy







13


Transit Travel Time


Conventional
BART


DMU/EMU Express
Bus/BRT


Enhanced Bus


From Downtown Oakland to Selected Locations (AM peak period)


Tr
av


el
 T


im
e 


(m
in


ut
es


)


71


44 47 50
59


91


55 58 55


75
80


55 58 58


79


0


20


40


60


80


100


Las Positas


National


Downtown


No Project


College


Laboratories


Livermore







14


2040 Increase in BART Systemwide 
Boardings (average weekday)


11,900 Additional Systemwide Boardings


11,900 


7,000 


3,500 


400 
-


2,000


4,000


6,000


8,000


10,000


12,000


Conventional BART DMU/EMU Express Bus/BRT Enhanced Bus







15


Isabel Versus Other BART Stations
Conventional BART Alternative


Isabel
16,200 in 2040


Source:  BART Financial Planning, 2017


2040 Average Weekday Boardings + Exits







16


Isabel Neighborhood Plan







17


 -


 2,000


 4,000


 6,000


 8,000


 10,000


 12,000


 14,000


 16,000


Base BART Alternative With INP + D/P ParkingWith INP


BART Systemwide Boardings
Adding Livermore Isabel Neighborhood Plan (INP)


Increase in 2040 BART Systemwide Boardings


13,400


11,900


+13%







18


2040 Reduction in Vehicle Miles Traveled
Average Weekday


244,000


140,600


92,600


6,500
0


50,000


100,000


150,000


200,000


250,000


300,000


Conventional BART DMU/EMU Express Bus/BRT Enhanced Bus







19


2040 Reduction in GHG Emissions
Metric Tons of CO2e per Year


11,200


3,500


6,000


3,700


-600-2,000


0


2,000


4,000


6,000


8,000


10,000


12,000


Conventional
BART


DMU EMU Express Bus/BRT Enhanced Bus







20


LVX Project Cost (YOE$*)
Design & Construction


0


200


400


600


800


1,000


1,200


1,400


1,600


1,800


Conventional
BART**


DMU EMU Express
Bus/BRT


Enhanced
Bus


Escalation


Pgm Reserve


Contingency


Prof Services


Vehicles


Right-of-Way


Construction


M
ill


io
ns


 o
f Y


O
E 


$


$1,600
$1,670


$380


$25


$1,635


* Year of expenditure dollars
**Conventional BART includes 25% of a BART shop







21


LVX Project Funding
Design & Construction


• $533 million total committed design & construction funding


• $398 million Alameda County Measure BB


• $80 million AB1171 (bridge tolls)


• $15 million RM1 (bridge tolls)


• $40 million Livermore Traffic Impact Fees







22


Annual Operations & Maintenance Cost


0


5


10


15


20


25


Conventional
BART*


DMU EMU Express
Bus/BRT


Enhanced Bus


Bus


Rail


M
ill


io
ns


 o
f 2


01
6 


$


$22.8


$16.8 $16.6


$3.0
$1.7


*Conventional BART includes 25% of a BART shop


Year 2040







23


Operating Revenue


Year 2040


M
ill


io
ns


 o
f 2


01
6 


$


$20.1


$12.1 $12.1


$5.9


$0.7
0


5


10


15


20


25


Conventional
BART


DMU EMU Express
Bus/BRT


Enhanced Bus







24


Farebox Recovery


58% 60% 61%


140%


7%
0%


50%


100%


150%


200%


250%


Conventional
BART


DMU EMU Express
Bus/BRT


Enhanced Bus


Opening Year







25


Farebox Recovery


88%
72% 73%


193%


40%


0%


50%


100%


150%


200%


250%


Conventional
BART


DMU EMU Express
Bus/BRT


Enhanced Bus


Year 2040







26


Annual Capital Rehabilitation/ 
Replacement Cost


M
ill


io
ns


 o
f 2


01
6 


$


$21.1
$18.8 $19.4


$5.1


$0.3
0


5


10


15


20


25


Conventional
BART


DMU EMU Express
Bus/BRT


Enhanced Bus







27


Cost* per New BART Boarding


Year 2040


20
16


 $


* Cost to build, operate, maintain, rehabilitate, and replace


-5


0


5


10


15


20


25


30


35


Conventional
BART


DMU EMU Express
Bus/BRT


Enhanced
Bus


Oper, Maint
Build
Rehab, Replace


$20.6


$30.6 $31.4


$14.2


$21.5







28


Cost* per New BART Boarding (net of fares)


* Cost to build, operate, maintain, rehabilitate, and replace


20
16


 $


-5


0


5


10


15


20


25


30


35


Conventional
BART


DMU EMU Express
Bus/BRT


Enhanced
Bus


Oper, Maint
Build
Rehab, Replace


$14.7


$24.6 $25.4


$8.4


$15.5


Year 2040







29


BART System Expansion Policy (SEP)
• Process and criteria required for all BART system 


expansion projects


• Criteria adopted 2002







30


System Expansion Policy
DMU/EMUAlternative


Existing Land Use:  Residential and/or Employment


Conventional 
BART


Enhanced 
Bus


Express 
Bus/BRT


Transit Supportive Land Use and Access


Existing Intermodal Connections


Land Use Plans and Policies


Ridership Threshold N/AN/A


Ridership Development Plan


Station Context N/AN/A


Cost per New Rider – Base Case


Cost Effectiveness


Cost per New Rider – with TOD


Low Low-Medium Medium High-Medium High


N/AN/A


(info only)







31


System Expansion Policy
DMU/EMUAlternative


Conventional 
BART


Enhanced 
Bus


Express 
Bus/BRT


Regional Network Connectivity


Regional Transportation Gap Closure


System and Financial Capacity


Core System Improvements


Capital Finance Plan


Operating Finance Plan


Partnerships


Community and Stakeholder Support TBDTBD TBDTBD


RECOMMENDATION TBDTBD TBDTBD


Low Low-Medium Medium High-Medium High


(info only)







32


BART to Livermore Project Goals


1A) Provide a cost-effective link


1B) Provide an intermodal link between BART, inter-regional 
rail, and PDAs


2) Support integrating transit and land use policies to create 
transit-oriented development (TOD) opportunities


3) Provide alternative to I-580 congestion


4) Improve air quality, reduce greenhouse gases (GHG)







33


Meeting Project Goals
DMU/EMUGoal


1A. Provide a cost-effective link


Conventional 
BART


Enhanced Bus
Express 
Bus/BRT


Low Low-Medium Medium Medium-High High


1B. Provide link between BART, 
inter-regional rail, and PDAs


2. Support policies to create TOD 
opportunities


3. Provide alternative to I-580 
congestion


4. Improve air quality, reduce GHG







34


MTC Project Performance Assessment


• Projects seeking regional discretionary funding need a High 
Performer rating


• MTC assessed 69 projects for Plan Bay Area 2017


• 11 received regional discretionary funding


• MTC assessed 90 projects for Plan Bay Area 2013


• 13 received regional discretionary funding







35


MTC Resolution 3434 TOD Policy
Conventional BART Alternative with INP


BART to Livermore not subject to MTC Resolution 3434 TOD Policy


Residential Units Within 
½ Mile of Station


TypeStation


565Current (2015)
Isabel


4,831Future (2040)


4,917Average for Two Stations (2040)


3,850MTC Threshold


Dublin/Pleasanton
924Current (2015)


5,003Future (2040)







36


Tri-Valley San Joaquin Valley Regional 
Rail Authority (TVSJVRRA)


• Created by AB758


• Purpose:  Deliver transit connectivity between BART 
and ACE in the Tri-Valley
• Feasibility study by July 1, 2019


• 15 member Board


• Authorized to plan, acquire, develop, own, control, use, 
design, procure, and build the connection







37


Tri-Valley San Joaquin Valley Regional 
Rail Authority (TVSJVRRA)


• LAVTA to provide administrative support for 18-months


• Can not infringe on BART's process to plan, develop, 
and deliver a BART extension to Isabel


• Restriction expires July 1, 2018 if the BART does not adopt a BART 
extension to Isabel by June 30, 2018







38


TVSJVRRA Project Concept
• EMU/DMU


• 30-min 
headway


• San Joaquin 
Valley to 
BART Tri-
Valley 
terminus





		BART to Livermore – Project Update�March 8, 2018

		Meeting Topics

		BART to Livermore (LVX) Status

		Schedule Considerations

		Public Outreach (Feb – Mar 2018)

		Proposed Project�Conventional BART to Isabel

		Alt 1	Diesel Multiple Unit (DMU) or Electric Multiple Unit (EMU)

		Alt 2	Express Bus/�Bus Rapid Transit (BRT)

		Alt 2	Express Bus/BRT at�Dublin/Pleasanton Station

		Express Bus/BRT Example

		Alt 3  Enhanced Bus

		Transit Travel Time

		Transit Travel Time

		2040 Increase in BART Systemwide Boardings (average weekday)

		Isabel Versus Other BART Stations

		 Isabel Neighborhood Plan

		BART Systemwide Boardings�Adding Livermore Isabel Neighborhood Plan (INP)

		2040 Reduction in Vehicle Miles Traveled

		2040 Reduction in GHG Emissions

		LVX Project Cost (YOE$*)�Design & Construction

		LVX Project Funding�Design & Construction

		Annual Operations & Maintenance Cost

		Operating Revenue

		Farebox Recovery

		Farebox Recovery

		Annual Capital Rehabilitation/ Replacement Cost

		Cost* per New BART Boarding

		Cost* per New BART Boarding (net of fares)

		BART System Expansion Policy (SEP)

		System Expansion Policy

		System Expansion Policy

		BART to Livermore Project Goals

		Meeting Project Goals

		MTC Project Performance Assessment

		MTC Resolution 3434 TOD Policy�Conventional BART Alternative with INP

		Tri-Valley San Joaquin Valley Regional Rail Authority (TVSJVRRA)

		Tri-Valley San Joaquin Valley Regional Rail Authority (TVSJVRRA)

		TVSJVRRA Project Concept






 


 


Independent Review of the BART Police Oversight 


Structure 


   


July 2017 
 
              ADDENDUM 
 
 


 


 


Michael J. Gennaco 


323 821 0586 


7142 Trask Avenue  


Playa del Rey, CA 90293 


OIRGroup.com 


 


Aaron B. Zisser 


628 400 1203 


Oakland, CA 


civilrightsconsulting.com 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 







 


 


   INDEPENDENT REVIEW OF THE BART 
   OVERSIGHT STRUCTURE: ADDENDUM 
 


The Model Should Set Out With More Clarity Procedures for Replacement of BPCRB 


Members. 


A question has arisen since the issuance of our initial June 2017 report, and we were asked to 


address an issue surrounding the replacement of BPCRB members.  The specific question was 


whether a new BART Director may, prior to the end of the BPCRB member’s term of 


appointment, replace the BPCRB member appointed by that BART Director’s predecessor.  The 


Model is currently silent on this specific issue.  Chapter 2-04 of the Model does address removal 


for cause “including but not limited to breach of ethics, confidentiality, or criminal conviction” 


and allows for removal by a resolution adopted by the majority of the Board of Directors.  As 


stated in our Report, Chapter 2-04 of the Model also calls for automatic termination of a BPCRB 


member after three Board meeting absences in a calendar year.
1
 


Whether the Model currently provides authority for an incoming Director to remove a BPCRB 


member unilaterally is not specifically addressed by the current Model.  The fact that the Model 


does not provide clear guidance on this issue suggests a need to amend the Model in order to do 


so.  Because our project was focused on improving the Model through revisions, we offer our 


thoughts below. 


From a civilian oversight perspective, modifying the Model to expressly allow a Director to 


remove a BPCRB member appointed by his/her predecessor could be seen by some as 


undermining the independence of the BPCRB.  If a BPCRB member can be replaced by an 


incoming Director for no reason, that BPCRB member may be concerned that making decisions 


on individual cases, policies, or systemic issues that are controversial could then be a basis for 


his/her removal.  Such a tenuous situation may also dissuade otherwise interested individuals 


from seeking appointment to the BPCRB. 


On the other hand, the BPCRB’s strength and authority arise in part from the support and 


confidence of the elected Directors in the member and the current Model appointment process 


clearly provides Directors the ability to each select a member with virtually unfettered discretion.  


Consistent with that discretion, a persuasive argument could be made that an incoming Director 


should have the authority to replace a BPCRB member with a new appointee who better reflects 


the values, interests, and philosophy of the incoming Director.   


In sum, the Model should be clarified to specifically speak to this issue.  Potential options to 


modifying the Model would be to expressly prohibit removal of BPCRB members except for 


unexcused absences or good cause or provide incoming Directors a brief window such as 60 


days during which they could replace the outgoing Director’s appointee.  Requiring the incoming 


                                                      
1
 In our initial report, we have recommended modification of this provision in order to provide 


relief for excused absences. 







 


 


Director to act within a brief period of time reduces the perception that a BPCRB member is 


being removed because the Director is unhappy with actions taken in a particular matter. 


Recommendation Fifty-Four: The Model should be revised to clarify whether a newly-seated 


BART Director may unilaterally remove his or her predecessor’s BPCRB appointee and 


specify any time limits for doing so.   








 


1 


 


 


Independent Review of the BART Police Oversight 


Structure 


   


June 2017 
 
 


 


 


Michael J. Gennaco 


323 821 0586 


7142 Trask Avenue  


Playa del Rey, CA 90293 


OIRGroup.com 


 


Aaron B. Zisser 


628 400 1203 


Oakland, CA 


civilrightsconsulting.com 


 


 


 


 


  







 


2 


 


 


TABLE OF CONTENTS 


I. Executive Summary .............................................................................................................. 3 


II. Introduction ........................................................................................................................... 6 
A. Background. ................................................................................................................................... 6 


B. Scope and Methodology ................................................................................................................. 7 


C. Acknowledgements ........................................................................................................................ 9 


III. Findings and Recommendations........................................................................................ 11 
A. Clarifying Oversight’s Scope ...................................................................................................... 11 


B. Increasing OIPA’s Monitoring Responsibilities ........................................................................ 12 


C. Making the Complaint Process Available to All ....................................................................... 14 


D. Enhancing OIPA Investigations ................................................................................................. 14 


E. Improving the Disposition Process of OIPA Investigations ..................................................... 18 


F. Additional Risk Management Role for OIPA. .......................................................................... 23 


G. Developing a Mediation Program ............................................................................................... 24 


H. Ensuring Prompt OIPA Notification of All Critical Incidents ................................................ 25 


I. Enhancing OIPA’s Footprint Regarding Use of Force ............................................................. 25 


J. Mapping Out a Significant Role for the Auditor in BART PD’s Early Identification System


 26 


K. Increasing OIPA’s Role as Auditor ............................................................................................ 27 


L. Expanding OIPA’s Role in Policy Development ....................................................................... 28 


M. Ensuring Integration of Oversight in BART PD’s Policies and Practices .............................. 29 


N. Clarifying the Relationship Between OIPA and the BART Police Citizen Review Board .... 30 


O. Clarifying and Enhancing the Roles of the BART Police Citizen Review Board .................. 31 


P. Providing Increased Transparency Authority for BART Oversight ...................................... 34 


Q. Ensuring Periodic Review of BART Oversight ......................................................................... 34 


  







 


3 


 


I. Executive Summary        


Overview of the review: Chapter 3-01 of the BART oversight model (hereinafter the 


“Model”) provides as follows: 


The Board of Directors, with input from the BART Police Citizen Review Board, 


Auditor, BART Police Associations, complainants and the public, will evaluate 


the BART Police citizen oversight structure after the first year of implementation 


to determine if the need exists to make changes and or otherwise make 


adjustments to the system to improve its continued performance.  This evaluation 


shall in no way be intended to eliminate the BART Police citizen oversight 


structure.
1
  


This review and report were commissioned and conducted in furtherance of BART’s compliance 


with this provision of the Model; that is, to facilitate the Board of Directors’ evaluation of the 


oversight structure. 


Our review began in January 2017.  We interviewed the stakeholders whose input is expressly 


set out in the Model, but we conducted many additional interviews with a broad range of other 


significant parties.  We ensured that the evaluation takes account of the original impetus for the 


establishment of the oversight system – the January 1, 2009, shooting of Oscar Grant by a BART 


Police Department (BART PD) officer – as well as the subsequent systemic reviews of policies 


and practices.  Because oversight’s effectiveness depends heavily on the community’s trust, 


engagement, and support, we placed a high premium on community attitudes and concerns 


regarding the oversight system. We measured these factors in a variety of ways.  


During our review, all individuals we met were generous with their time, accessibility, and 


candor.  Representatives of the Board of Directors, the BART Police Citizen Review Board, and 


the BART PD were particularly helpful in providing both relevant documents and important 


insights regarding the issues discussed herein.  The Office of the Independent Police Auditor 


(OIPA) was especially helpful in facilitating the mechanics of our work, and was continually 


available to provide documents and important perspective.  To the degree that our findings and 


recommendations may help enhance the current civilian oversight system, it reflects the 


cooperation, assistance, and acumen provided by these stakeholders. 


The oversight system: The BART PD oversight system, established in July 2010 following a 


process that involved community input, consists of the OIPA and the BART Police Citizen 


Review Board.  According to the Model, OIPA (with a current staffing level of three) is to 


conduct investigations of complaints alleging serious officer misconduct, make 


recommendations on BART PD policies and practices, audit Internal Affairs (IA) investigations, 


conduct close monitoring of officer-involved shootings, conduct community outreach, issue 


                                                      
1
 The Oversight Model is available on the website of the Office of the Independent Police 


Auditor: https://www.bart.gov/about/policeauditor and attached to this report as Attachment A. 



https://www.bart.gov/about/policeauditor





 


4 


 


public reports on investigation outcomes and trends, and provide staffing and other resources to 


the BART Police Citizen Review Board. 


The BART Police Citizen Review Board consists of 11 members.  Each of the nine Directors 


selects one member, while one is appointed by the police associations, and one is “at-large.”  


According to the Model, the Review Board is to hold monthly public meetings, review OIPA’s 


investigations, review BART PD and OIPA recommendations regarding BART PD policies, 


make its own recommendations regarding BART PD policies, conduct community outreach, and 


issue reports on its activities.  Its members are also authorized under the Model to participate in 


officer and executive hiring. 


Overview of findings: We found that the Model devised in response to the tragic shooting of 


Oscar Grant created two oversight entities that have served a valuable purpose in establishing 


effective civilian oversight over an agency that had no such previous external influences.  The 


fact that we offer numerous recommendations designed to strengthen and clarify the original 


Model should in no way diminish the work of those who have worked diligently to fulfill the 


overarching objectives of accountability, advancing progressive police practices, and fostering 


greater community trust in law enforcement.  Instead, this Report seeks to fulfill a key part of the 


Model’s original vision:  one that recognized that a constructive re-assessment of BART’s 


nascent oversight program should be built into the design. 


From that starting point, we found several areas in which the Model could benefit from revision 


and reform.  These include significant omissions in the Model relating to investigations and 


auditing authority, and the ambiguities in provisions relating to outreach, reporting, 


investigations, and policy recommendations. 


The review features a total of fifty-three recommendations.  They range in scope from broad 


issues of jurisdiction and structure to more particular or technical adjustments to specific 


provisions in the Model.  Among the key categories that produced specific suggestions for 


reform are the following: 


Recommendations to expand authority and related findings: We recommend expanding the 


oversight system’s authority in two areas: 


 Broader audit authority: First, we recommend expanding the auditing authority to 


allow OIPA to review any operational aspect of BART PD – as opposed to merely 


reviewing IA’s operations.  


 Investigations absent a complaint: Second, we recommend authorizing OIPA to 


conduct its own independent investigation or review into any use of force or potential act 


of misconduct without the need to await receipt of a qualifying citizen complaint.  


Other recommendations and findings:  


 Independence from each other’s roles and responsibilities should be reinforced through 


structural changes to OIPA and the BART Police Citizen Review Board for the sake of 


their respective and mutual effectiveness.  OIPA’s obligations relating to staffing the 







 


5 


 


Review Board should be removed, the requirement of a Review Board performance 


evaluation of the IPA should be eliminated, and orientation and training for Review 


Board members should be enhanced to delineate roles and responsibilities. 


 Case Auditing should be conducted in a more consistent and thorough manner that 


allows for not only pre-completion input into the IA investigation, but also the ability to 


influence dispositions and discipline prior to BART PD’s final decision. 


 A Systemic Auditing protocol should be developed and implemented.  OIPA should 


analyze trends and patterns, and it should be involved in BART PD procedures relating to 


use-of-force reviews and early identification of officers who may require remedial 


interventions. 


 Investigations should address a broader range of complaints; any person should be able 


to file a complaint; and written protocols should be developed regarding investigative 


techniques, procedures, and coordination with other BART components to ensure 


confidence in OIPA’s investigations and to ensure that it receives all complaints coming 


in to BART. 


 Use of Force Review should become an arena in which OIPA more regularly 


participates, including assessing individual incidents, and contributing to holistic 


discussions of tactics and training, and other potential elements of constructive feedback. 


 Policy, procedure, and practice recommendations should constitute a regular and 


formalized element of OIPA’s interactions with and influence on BART PD. 


 Public reporting by OIPA should be enhanced, in the form of greater detail with regard 


to its case monitoring role of internal investigations initiated by BART PD.  Similarly, 


OIPA should report on the increased activities proposed in this report. 


 Mediation should continue to be studied for ways to make it more attractive to 


complainants and officers. 


 An oversight system evaluation should be conducted periodically.  







 


6 


 


II. Introduction          


A. Background. 


BART PD: Established in 1969, BART PD is “comprised of 296 personnel, of which 206 are 


sworn peace officers,” according to BART PD’s website.
2
  BART PD covers the entire BART 


system, which extends into four counties.  The Chief of Police reports to the General Manager 


(GM), who is appointed by the Board of Directors.  


Shooting of Oscar Grant and aftermath: On January 1, 2009, Oscar Grant was fatally shot by 


BART police officer Johannes Mehserle on the Fruitvale Station platform.  On August 11, 2009, 


the law firm Meyers Nave issued a report regarding policies and practices “relevant to the” Oscar 


Grant shooting.
3
 


From June 2009 to September 2009, the National Organization of Black Law Enforcement 


Executives (NOBLE) conducted a review of BART PD’s policies and practices, and it issued a 


report on January 1, 2010, which identified areas for improvement in a number of areas of BART 


PD’s operations.
4
  A follow-up audit was conducted in 2013, and BART PD continues to report 


on its ongoing efforts to implement the recommended reforms. 


In June 2010, Mehserle was convicted of involuntary manslaughter and acquitted of murder and 


voluntary manslaughter charges.  


BART Public Safety Accountability Act: In September 2009 – immediately following the 


Meyers Nave report and before the completion of the NOBLE report – a bill was proposed in the 


state legislature to create an independent oversight system for BART PD.  In July of 2010, the 


BART Public Safety Accountability Act was enacted.  It directed the BART Board of Directors 


to “establish an office of independent police auditor, reporting directly to the board, to 


investigate complaints against district police personnel” and assigned the following “powers and 


duties” to the appointed auditor
5
: 


(1) To investigate those complaints or allegations of on-duty misconduct and off-duty 


unlawful activity by district police personnel, within the independent police auditor’s 


purview as it is set by the board.  


                                                      
2
 “History of the BART Police Department,” http://m.bart.gov/about/police/employment.  


3
 Meyers Nave, “Review of BART PD Policies, Practices and Procedures Re: New Year’s Day 


2009,” 1 (Aug. 2009), available at 


https://www.bart.gov/sites/default/files/docs/Meyers_Nave_Public_Report.pdf.  


4
 NOBLE, “BART Management Audit,” (Jan. 2010) [NOBLE Audit (2010)], available at 


https://www.bart.gov/sites/default/files/docs/NOBLE_Final_Report.pdf.  


5
 CA Pub. Util. Code § 28767.8(a) (2016). 



http://m.bart.gov/about/police/employment

https://www.bart.gov/sites/default/files/docs/Meyers_Nave_Public_Report.pdf

https://www.bart.gov/sites/default/files/docs/NOBLE_Final_Report.pdf





 


7 


 


(2) To reach independent findings as to the validity of each complaint.  


(3) To recommend appropriate disciplinary action against district police personnel for those 


complaints determined to be sustained.
6
  


The Act also authorized the Board to create “a citizen review board to participate in 


recommending appropriate disciplinary action.”
7
 


Oversight Model: Pursuant to the legislation, the BART Board of Directors formed a committee 


to study what type of oversight should be established.  There were numerous public hearings 


with robust input from members of the community.  The Model eventually promulgated called 


for an independent police auditor, as well as a citizen review board.  Responsibilities of the 


oversight system – detailed in this report – included: investigations of complaints alleging 


serious officer misconduct, recommendations on BART PD policies and practices, auditing of 


Internal Affairs investigations, close monitoring of officer-involved shootings, community 


outreach, and issuing public reports on investigation outcomes and trends. 


OIPA: The OIPA is appointed by and reports directly to the Board of Directors.  OIPA consists 


of three staff, including the Independent Police Auditor (IPA), an investigator, and an 


administrative support person.  


BART Police Citizen Review Board: The Review Board consists of 11 members, including 


nine members appointed by the respective Directors, a member appointed by the police 


associations, and an at-large member selected through a formal application process. 


B. Scope and Methodology 


Scope: Chapter 3-01 of the Oversight Model provides as follows: 


The Board of Directors, with input from the BART Police Citizen Review Board, 


Auditor, BART Police Associations, complainants and the public, will evaluate the 


BART Police citizen oversight structure after the first year of implementation to 


determine if the need exists to make changes and or otherwise make adjustments to the 


system to improve its continued performance.  This evaluation shall in no way be 


intended to eliminate the BART Police citizen oversight structure.  


Even though the Model calls for an evaluation after one year of implementation, no assessment 


has ever been conducted since the inception of BART’s civilian oversight.  While this lapse was 


unfortunate, it is a testament to OIPA and the Board of Directors that this independent review 


has now been commissioned.  


We sought to answer two basic sets of questions: 


                                                      
6
 CA Pub. Util. Code § 28767.8(b)(1)-(3) (2016). 


7
 CA Pub. Util. Code § 28767.8(c) (2016). 







 


8 


 


 Does the oversight structure perform as contemplated in the language of the Model? If 


not, what ambiguities or omissions in the Model’s language may impact optimum 


performance? 


 Could the oversight structure be improved or enhanced to further the oversight system’s 


goals, as articulated in best practices and understood by the communities it serves?  


Overview of methodology: To these ends, we evaluated: 


 The language of the Model for ambiguity or weaknesses. 


 Whether practice could benefit by providing clearer authority, expansion of duties, and 


reconsideration of priorities. 


 The perceptions and concerns of communities BART serves and BART system 


stakeholders, as well as national best practices, to gauge what changes would help to 


instill additional trust in the oversight structure and aid in serving its goals. 


Interviews: Our review began in January 2017 and entailed more than 50 interviews with nearly 


four dozen stakeholders.  These included OIPA staff; BART Police Citizen Review Board 


members; seven BART directors; local oversight professionals; local advocacy groups, including 


the local ACLU affiliate and the Coalition on Homelessness; police associations; IA officers; and 


BART PD command staff.  


Community interest and concerns: Just as it was essential that we speak with police officials 


and representatives, community feedback – particularly input from impacted communities, 


including communities of color – was of critical importance in our review.  This is because the 


effectiveness of civilian oversight depends heavily on the community’s trust in its independence, 


authority, and capacity. 


Community members – especially those who have perceived or borne the brunt of systemic 


unfairness and an adversarial relationship with law enforcement – are much more likely to 


provide information and insight to an oversight entity that they consider fair, meaningful, and 


empowered.  Those contributions from the community can, in turn, strengthen the legitimacy and 


the effectiveness of the oversight entity.  And this dynamic can ultimately increase community 


trust in the police department, as well – the public is reassured by the sense of accountability and 


gives credence to the positive acknowledgements of progress that the oversight entity can 


provide.  Accordingly, our recommendations draw heavily on what we learned from and about 


the communities served by BART. 


We assessed community interest through interviews with individual residents as well as political 


leaders, leaders of community and advocacy groups, and leaders of other Bay Area oversight 


agencies who could speak to broader community sentiment.  We also gauged community interest 


and concerns through other Bay Area initiatives on oversight, as well as input provided during 


the original 2009 process. 







 


9 


 


Finally, we sought to account for any countervailing concerns, with an eye toward maximizing 


the understanding and acceptance of all key stakeholders, including those subject to oversight 


and those with contrasting viewpoints on how it should function. 


BART Police Citizen Review Board sessions and documentation: We attended three Review 


Board sessions and requested and reviewed additional documentation, including: 


 The Model and earlier drafts of the Model 


 Review Board bylaws 


 Complaints and OIPA investigation reports 


 Notifications provided to officers and complainants 


 OIPA monitoring reports regarding IA investigations  


 OIPA and Review Board reports 


 Review Board agendas and minutes 


 OIPA and Review Board policy recommendations 


 IPA and Review Board member selection materials 


 The 2010 NOBLE report, the follow-up 2013 audit, and the 2009 Meyers Nave report 


 Outreach materials 


 Public information regarding the process for developing the oversight Model, community 


members’ observations of the oversight system, and serious incidents involving BART 


PD officers 
 


Best practices and standards: In addition to drawing from our own experience and exposure to 


various oversight models and practices, we consulted best practices and standards from a variety 


of sources, including the National Association for the Civilian Oversight of Law Enforcement 


(NACOLE) reports and reports by other professional organizations; scholarly literature on 


oversight; the NACOLE code of ethics (cited in the Model); the Core Principles for an Effective 


Police Auditor’s Office (cited in the Model); U.S. Department of Justice, Civil Rights Division 


investigations and consent decrees
8
 and COPS Collaborative Reform Initiative reports


9
; and the 


Final Report of the President’s Task Force on 21
st
 Century Policing (May 2015).


10
  


C. Acknowledgements  


We received enormous support throughout the review process from a range of stakeholders and 


are grateful to each person who took the time to sit down with us for an interview.  We were able 


to interview most members of the Board of Directors, who expressed strong interest in the 


review.  Some helpfully directed us to other stakeholders.  BART PD’s executive staff, Internal 


                                                      
8
 The U.S. Department of Justice publishes its findings letters and settlement agreements on its 


website: https://www.justice.gov/crt/special-litigation-section-cases-and-matters0.  


9
 The U.S. Department of Justice catalogues its COPS assessment reports:  


https://cops.usdoj.gov/collaborativereform.  


10
 Final Report of the President’s Task Force on 21


st
 Century Policing (May 2015), available at 


https://cops.usdoj.gov/pdf/taskforce/taskforce_finalreport.pdf.  



https://www.justice.gov/crt/special-litigation-section-cases-and-matters0

https://cops.usdoj.gov/collaborativereform

https://cops.usdoj.gov/pdf/taskforce/taskforce_finalreport.pdf





 


10 


 


Affairs investigators, and the police associations, as well as the OIPA staff were open and candid 


and provided invaluable insights.  


The current IPA enlisted this review, provided a comprehensive list of potential interviewees, 


contacted many of them to help schedule interviews, and was readily available for ongoing 


questions.  The IPA provided critical OIPA documents and spent many hours sharing his 


understanding of and views on the system with us.  We applaud his energy and interest and note 


that this review likely would not have happened but for his proactivity and creativity.  The IPA’s 


embracing of this peer review process, and full cooperation with it, is testament to an admirable 


growth mindset. 


Finally, we are grateful to the family of Oscar Grant, who remain constructively engaged in the 


subjects of oversight and accountability, and who took the time in that spirit to share their 


experience and suggestions with us.   







 


11 


 


III. Findings and Recommendations    


BART’s current oversight model has many admirable features and has served its transit 


community well for almost six years.  The Model provides OIPA with access to the most 


sensitive of Police Department records and gives it the ability to conduct independent 


investigations, audit internal investigations conducted by BART PD, and make policy 


recommendations.  Moreover, the Model provides the BART Police Citizen Review Board with 


an opportunity to meaningfully weigh in on complaint investigations and recommend 


disciplinary outcomes, an authority that very few community-based oversight entities possess.  


However, the Model has ambiguities and places unnecessary limits on oversight authority.  This 


is due in large part to requiring the existence of a complaint before authority can be exercised.  In 


addition, the Model saddles OIPA with administrative functions for the BART Police Citizen 


Review Board, blurring the lines between oversight entities with complementary yet distinct and 


independent roles.  The recommendations set out below – which flow from an evaluation process 


expressly contemplated by the original model –are intended to provide clarity regarding both 


OIPA and the BART Police Citizen Review Board’s authority.  The recommendations suggest a 


course that could result in more impactful oversight for the benefit of the community and BART 


PD alike.   


A. Clarifying Oversight’s Scope 


The Model Should Make Explicit that OIPA’s Oversight Scope Includes All Employees of 


BART PD and Any Potential Violations of Policy. 


Currently the Model states that OIPA has the authority to exercise its oversight duties with 


regard to “any and all law enforcement activities or personnel operating under the authority of” 


BART.  We have been informed that this passage has been interpreted to include non-sworn 


members of BART.  However, for purposes of clarity, the Model should indicate that all 


employees of BART are within OIPA’s oversight authority.   


Many of the non-sworn employees of a police agency have considerable interaction with the 


public and are indirectly imbued with the authority of the law enforcement entity for which they 


work.  Accordingly, those employees often have significant influence on whether the public is 


appropriately served by the agency.  For that reason, all police department employees should be 


subject to civilian oversight’s ambit. 


Moreover, at least as to sworn officers, the Model should make clear that any potential violations 


of policy should fall within the ambit of OIPA.  Law and practice has also recognized that there 


is a clear nexus between off-duty conduct and on duty responsibilities for sworn officers.  For 


that reason, it has been long held that police officers can be held accountable for off-duty 


misconduct inconsistent with their duties and responsibility to uphold the law.  For example, 


officers who are found to have engaged in domestic violence or impaired driving can be 


independently sanctioned for that conduct by their employing agencies.  In order to ensure 


accountability for these actions, progressive oversight entities have recognized that they must 







 


12 


 


similarly be able to exercise oversight over off-duty officer conduct.  The Model for OIPA must 


ensure that such oversight authority exists over BART PD. 


Recommendation One: The Model should be revised to make clear that the scope of OIPA’s 


authority extends to non-sworn employees of BART PD and to all potential misconduct 


involving sworn officers whether on or off duty. 


B. Increasing OIPA’s Monitoring Responsibilities 


OIPA Should Consider Revising Its Approach Towards Monitoring Internal Affairs 


Investigations Conducted by BART PD Toward Real-Time Monitoring and More 


Transparency. 


Pursuant to the Model, OIPA has the authority to audit internal affairs investigations conducted 


by BART PD to determine if the investigations are “complete, thorough, objective and fair.”  


OIPA also has the ability to “require” follow-up investigation into any citizen complaint or 


allegation that is handled by BART PD. 


OIPA has, in the past, exercised this authority provided by the Model when it determined that a 


BART PD investigation did not meet investigative standards.  However, we are aware of a recent 


instance when there was resistance by BART PD after the Auditor identified an incomplete and 


substandard investigation and sought follow-up investigative work.  BART PD should be 


reminded of the non-discretionary language in the Model requiring it to conduct follow-up 


investigation when requested by OIPA.  To ensure an effective remedy should there be any 


BART PD compliance issues, the Auditor should be able to present any significant lapse to the 


attention of the General Manager, the Board of Directors, and the BART Police Citizen Review 


Board and set out the incident in its public reporting. 


The Model provides the opportunity for OIPA to engage with BART PD as it proceeds with its 


internal investigative process.  That ability has been enhanced by OIPA’s direct access to IA’s 


investigative database.  We have been informed that OIPA regularly uses its database access to 


audit investigations being conducted by BART PD and has provided input and suggestions such 


as identifying additional witnesses to interview.  OIPA also provides feedback on completed 


investigations to BART PD.
11


 


However, to the degree that OIPA provides such auditing of the Department’s internal affairs 


investigations, most of the feedback occurs after the case has been completed and a disposition 


has already been rendered.  At that point, any post hoc input from OIPA has a potentially limited 


impact on disposition decisions made by the Police Department since the disposition has already 


been determined and subject officers and complainants notified about that decision. 


Another approach to auditing of BART PD cases that appears to be workable within the current 


Model would be for OIPA to deploy “real-time” monitoring of cases.  Under that paradigm, 


                                                      
11


 To the degree there remains any uncertainty, OIPA should be provided the authority to 


monitor any internal investigations conducted by BART PD, including internally generated 


investigations. 







 


13 


 


OIPA would audit active Internal Affairs investigations, serve as a resource during the pendency 


of the investigations, and, upon their completion, would review each case for completeness and 


objectivity.  OIPA would then provide any feedback to Internal Affairs, suggesting any 


additional investigation prior to the case being completed.  Similarly, prior to BART decision-


makers’ determination as to whether the evidence indicates a violation of policy, OIPA would 


offer independent recommendations on investigative outcomes.  Finally, on founded cases, OIPA 


would present its recommendations with regard to the appropriate level of discipline.  While 


BART PD would have ultimate authority regarding each of these internal decisions, OIPA’s real 


time involvement in these decisions would likely make its input more impactful than the “after 


the fact” interaction currently deployed.
12


 


In addition to providing quality assurance in real time for thorough investigations and evidence-


based determinations on outcomes, OIPA could and should weigh in on other important 


investigative decisions.  Sometimes, allegations of misconduct implicate potential crimes.  The 


decision whether to forward such allegations to the District Attorney is one in which OIPA 


should participate.  Additionally, under this approach, OIPA could play a helpful role in the 


proper scoping of investigations. 


As importantly, OIPA should document and report on its auditing function.  Currently, there is 


no detailed report of OIPA’s auditing of BART PD cases, and the data reported regarding 


discipline and the outcomes by investigating agency (i.e., OIPA versus IA) is unclear.  If OIPA 


decides to transition its current auditing function into real-time monitoring, it should 


significantly enhance its reporting of this function to the BART Police Citizen Review Board, 


the Board of Directors, and the public.  OIPA should set out a narrative of each case audited, 


whether it found the investigation adequate, any input made by OIPA regarding improving the 


investigations, the disposition, and, in founded cases, the discipline imposed.  OIPA should also 


report on the degree to which it concurred or disagreed with BART PD’s case determinations.  


This increased level of transparency would provide stakeholders an important window into the 


Police Department’s accountability system and an independent assessment of its vibrancy.
13


 


Recommendation Two: OIPA should consider modifying its monitoring function of BART PD 


internal affairs investigations to “real-time” monitoring, offering recommendations on the 


strength of investigations and appropriateness of dispositions prior to BART PD completing 


the process. 


                                                      
12


 We have been informed that, to the credit of the former Chief, occasionally OIPA had been 


asked in real time to provide input regarding investigative or disposition determinations by 


BART PD.  Our recommendation is for a more comprehensive expansion of this encouraging 


dynamic. 


13
 We leave to OIPA to determine based on its resources what portion of BART PD’s internal 


investigations it could monitor in real time.  One potential “bright line” suggestion would be to 


monitor all internal investigations conducted by the Department’s Internal Affairs unit. 







 


14 


 


Recommendation Three: Should OIPA move to real-time monitoring, it should be involved in 


decisions regarding whether a matter should be forwarded to the District Attorney for criminal 


review, and the appropriate scoping of an investigation. 


Recommendation Four: OIPA should make its reported data on investigations and 


recommended discipline clearer and should publicly report its involvement and auditing 


functions in detail, setting out its assessment of the quality of each investigation and the 


appropriateness of each disposition and disciplinary determination.  The Model should be 


modified to provide OIPA the express authority to report any resistance by BART PD to 


conduct additional investigation to the attention of the Board of Directors, the General 


Manager, the BART Police Citizen Review Board, and the public. 


C. Making the Complaint Process Available to All 


The Model Should Be Revised to Allow Any Person to File a Complaint with OIPA or the 


BART Police Citizen Review Board Against Any BART Employee. 


Currently, the Model provides for a very limited universe of persons who may file a complaint 


with OIPA or the BART Police Citizen Review Board.  Only “victims of on-duty police 


misconduct, a victim’s parent or guardian or a witness to misconduct” are permitted to file 


complaints against “a BART police officer.”  The Model’s limitation on who qualifies as a 


complainant has led to circumstances in which OIPA has been handcuffed in its ability to 


investigate concerning incidents. 


In one recent case, a widow of a person who died in custody did not qualify as a “complainant” 


under the Model’s definition.  And in another case, a concerning use of force incident that 


occurred on a train platform, was captured on video, was uploaded on You Tube, and received 


thousands of views but did not qualify for OIPA purview because a qualified complainant did 


not file with the Auditor. 


There is no rational justification for denying access to any individual who desires to file a 


complaint with BART’s oversight entities.  In fact, progressive oversight entities even allow 


receipt of anonymous complaints.  In addition, for the reasons discussed above, OIPA should 


have clear authority to investigate complaints against any BART PD employee, not just police 


officers. 


Recommendation Five: The Model should be revised to provide any persons the ability to file a 


complaint with OIPA and/or the BART Police Citizen Review Board against any BART PD 


employee. 


D. Enhancing OIPA Investigations 


The Model Should Be Revised to Provide OIPA the Discretion to Investigate Any 


Complaint Received. 


Currently, the Model provides OIPA the authority to investigate “all complaints of allegations of 


police officer misconduct regarding unnecessary or excessive use of police force, racial profiling, 


sexual orientation bias, sexual harassment, and the use of deadly force, suspicious and wrongful 







 


15 


 


deaths.”  It is inconsistent with progressive oversight practices to limit OIPA’s investigative 


authority to these categories.  Instead of setting out what OIPA “can do,” the Model should 


provide OIPA the discretion and authority to investigate any complaint received.  


Recommendation Six: The Model should be revised to provide OIPA the ability to investigate 


any allegation of misconduct that implicates the policies of BART PD.
14


 


OIPA and BART PD Should Consider New Investigative Models Designed to Create 


Efficiencies and Avoid Duplicative Investigations. 


Currently, when OIPA determines to investigate a complaint and proceeds with its investigation, 


BART PD conducts its own investigation into the same allegations.  This paradigm results in two 


investigations of the same allegation with the same purpose – to determine whether the facts 


indicate a violation of BART PD policies.  In addition to the inefficiencies of having two 


investigations being conducted for the same purpose, such an investigative scheme has the 


potential of requiring the complainant, witnesses, and involved officers to be interviewed twice, 


with any inconsistencies being used to undermine the investigation if a disciplinary 


determination is challenged.  Moreover, the existence of two investigations with separate review 


criteria could lead to disparate results based on the same set of facts.   


For these reasons, we recommend that OIPA and BART PD examine the possibility of 


developing an investigative paradigm whereby the Auditor has initial review authority on 


complaint allegations made to his Office.  In those cases, the Auditor should determine whether 


to investigate the case or refer all or some of the allegations to BART PD for investigation.  Any 


allegations referred to BART PD should be monitored by OIPA.  BART PD should defer any 


investigation of allegations assumed by OIPA.  Such a paradigm would eliminate the 


inefficiencies of two investigations undertaken for the same purpose and the potential negative 


consequences discussed above.   


Recommendation Seven: OIPA and BART PD should develop an investigative paradigm 


whereby OIPA would determine whether to investigate any complaint allegations received 


initially by the Office and BART PD would defer investigating allegations that the Auditor 


opted to investigate. 


OIPA Should Develop an Investigative Handbook. 


Too frequently, investigative authority is provided to entities with little guidance or direction on 


how to exercise that authority.  This has proven true in our experience regarding police agencies 


and their internal review processes, and oversight agencies are often susceptible to the same 


                                                      
14


 To the degree that our recommendations provide clear authority for OIPA to investigate 


allegations of misconduct, it may become necessary for the Auditor and BART PD to work out 


protocols regarding which entity investigates which allegations.  One “bright line” rule that may 


work is for the entity that initially receives the allegation to take the investigative lead.  We are 


confident, however, that OIPA and the Police Department will be able to work out these 


jurisdictional questions. 







 


16 


 


omissions.  OIPA apparently falls within this paradigm.  While, to its credit, OIPA did create 


investigative templates and standard formatting for its investigations, principles of investigation 


were not set out in any handbook or manual.  Such a handbook is particularly important for 


internal investigations of police officers, given the unique substantive elements and the 


distinctive framework of statutory requirements set forth in California’s “Police Officer’s Bill of 


Rights.”    


An investigative handbook that codified basic principles would help ensure that OIPA 


investigations were conducted consistent with best internal investigative practices.
15


  Moreover, 


the development of an investigative handbook should not create a substantial resource burden.  


Our experience suggests that, while the handbook should be tailored to OIPA’s oversight 


responsibilities for BART PD, universal investigative principles that already exist in handbooks 


of other agencies could be easily incorporated into an OIPA version. 


Recommendation Eight: OIPA should develop a handbook to provide guidance and 


expectations for its internal investigations. 


OIPA Should Develop Internal Guidelines Regarding Investigative Timelines for 


Completion of an Investigation. 


Under California law, in order for discipline to be imposed, a subject police officer generally 


must be informed of the agency’s intent to discipline within a year of agency knowledge of the 


investigation.  For that reason, with some exceptions, internal investigations of police officers 


need to be completed within a year of their initiation.  While police agencies and oversight 


entities imbued with investigative authority recognize this statutory requirement, many recognize 


the interest in completing investigations well before the one-year deadline.  There are several 


reasons for this. 


First, if an investigation languishes unnecessarily, the complainant and subject officer will not 


receive timely notice of the result.  More importantly, because most discipline is intended to be 


remedial, a delayed investigation will result in the remediation also being delayed.  Nor does the 


quality of evidence tend to improve with age; on the contrary, memories fade and a delayed 


investigation can undermine the gathering of accurate and complete recollections.  Finally, 


collateral issues such as consideration for promotion or special assignment can be unnecessarily 


delayed for the subject officer during the pendency of unresolved investigations. 


Fortunately, OIPA has established a history of being timely in completing its investigations, in 


part because of its relatively small caseload.  However, because the recommendations set out in 


                                                      
15


 While a qualitative review of OIPA’s internal investigations was not the focus of our inquiry, 


we learned of one investigative technique that was concerning, namely the frequent use of 


telephone interviews by OIPA.  Investigative principles strongly favor in-person interviews 


because of the natural limitations that exist if an interview is conducted over the telephone.  







 


17 


 


this report envision a larger caseload for OIPA, it is important to establish formal protocols for 


maintaining timeliness.
16


 


Recommendation Nine: OIPA should set out investigative timelines in its internal protocols 


that not only meet the statutory requirements but also reflect a commitment to prompt and 


efficient resolution of cases. 


The Model Should Be Amended so that OIPA’s Disciplinary Determinations Correspond to 


Those Utilized by BART PD. 


Currently, the Model states that OIPA is to recommend that the matter be “dismissed” at the 


conclusion of an OIPA investigation in which the allegations are not supported by the evidence.  


Such a finding is not a generally accepted outcome for internal investigations in California.  


Rather, police agencies provide a menu of disposition options; for BART PD they are sustained, 


not sustained, exonerated or unfounded.   


We have been informed that, in practice, OIPA makes findings after its investigation consistent 


with the four options available to BART PD.  However, in order for the Model to conform to 


current practice, the language should be revised accordingly. 


Recommendation Ten: The Model should be clarified to reflect that upon the conclusion of an 


OIPA investigation, OIPA should recommend a finding of sustained, not sustained, 


exonerated, or unfounded. 


OIPA Should Revise its Closing Letters to Provide the Complainant as Much Information 


as Legally Permissible. 


At the conclusion of an internal investigation, OIPA prepares a closing letter informing the 


complainant of the results.  Consistent with many closing letters we have reviewed, OIPA’s 


closing letters are brief and provide little detail about the underlying investigation.  Instead, the 


notification letter simply reports the outcome without explaining the basis for the decision or the 


nature of the investigative process.  Complainants whose allegation is not proven (i.e., 


exonerated, unfounded, or not sustained) are left wondering about the thoroughness of the 


investigation and the legitimacy of the result.   


California law provides restrictions on the type of information that can be provided to a 


complainant.  Those restrictions, for example, have been interpreted to bar the agency from 


providing precise information about the disciplinary action taken.  However, there is room under 


the law to give complainants more insight into the process.  There is no prohibition, for example, 


on providing the number of witnesses interviewed, or whether video or audio evidence existed 


and was reviewed.  By sharing this information, and otherwise tailoring the notification to the 


unique circumstances of the case, OIPA could move away from the type of “form letter” 


response that can exacerbate disappointment and undermine trust in the process.  Accordingly, 


                                                      
16


 We iterate that the ability to successfully keep to any internal timelines will be dependent on a 


sufficient allocation of resources to OIPA. 







 


18 


 


OIPA should craft closing letters that offer insights into the process and the means by which the 


result was reached. 


Recommendation Eleven: OIPA should tailor its closing letters to each individual case and 


provide the complainant additional information about the investigative steps taken to reach its 


conclusion. 


At the End of an Investigation, OIPA Should Consider Offering the Complainant the 


Opportunity to View Video Evidence. 


Because of the adoption of body-worn cameras and the other video surveillance available at 


BART stations, there is a significant likelihood that the conduct complained about may be 


captured by video evidence.  Video evidence can be significantly dispositive of allegations made 


against police officers.  In cases in which video evidence exists and has contributed to the 


decision not to sustain an allegation, it is recommended that OIPA offer the complainant the 


opportunity to view the video, particularly when the complainant is the alleged victim of the 


misconduct.
17


   


Recommendation Twelve: When a concluded investigation does not result in a sustained 


finding, OIPA should offer the complainant the opportunity to view any video account of the 


incident. 


E. Improving the Disposition Process of OIPA 


Investigations 


The Model Should Be Revised so that More Transparency is Provided Regarding the 


BART Police Citizen Review Board’s Determination on Case Outcomes. 


Currently the Model requires the Auditor to submit his findings to the BART Police Citizen 


Review Board for consideration.  Under current practice, the Review Board considers the 


Auditor’s recommendations and votes in closed session regarding whether to agree or disagree 


with those recommendations.  The Model is silent about how that vote is reported.  Current 


practice is to report out the results of any vote and the vote count when not unanimous, but the 


way in which individual Board members voted is not discernable. 


While the case deliberation must remain private in accord with state law, there is no legal 


prohibition on publicizing how each Review Board member voted.  Moreover, when there is a 


dissent, a rationale for the opposing votes should be crafted that could be made public.  


Accordingly, and consistent with enhanced transparency, the Model should be revised to 


stipulate that such information will be made public in the interest of providing further insight 


into the process and outcomes. 


                                                      
17


 Competing privacy interests may prevail in cases in which the complainant is not the person 


being captured on video and in those situations OIPA should use its discretion on whether to 


offer to show the video evidence. 







 


19 


 


There may be occasions where OIPA may be interested in presenting monitored BART PD cases 


to the BART Police Citizen Review Board in order to receive input and feedback.  Modifying the 


Model to provide the Auditor flexibility and discretion to do so is consistent with the document’s 


overarching interest in gaining meaningful feedback and input from the community-based 


oversight entity.  


Recommendation Thirteen: The Model should be revised to instruct that the BART Police 


Citizen Review Board’s vote tally by member on the Auditor’s case recommendations and 


findings should be made public.  In cases in which a non-unanimous majority agrees with the 


Auditor’s case recommendations and findings, the dissenters should set out their rationale for 


diverging from the majority’s determination. 


Recommendation Fourteen: The Model should be revised to provide the Auditor the discretion 


to present BART PD internal investigations to the BART Police Citizen Review Board in order 


to receive input and feedback. 


The Model Should Be Revised to Provide More Clarity Regarding Process When BART’s 


Chief Disagrees with OIPA/BART Police Citizen Review Board’s Recommendation. 


Currently the Model states that, should the BART Chief of Police disagree with the findings and 


recommendations of the Auditor and the BART Police Citizen Review Board, the Chief has the 


ability to appeal the determination to the General Manager in a confidential personnel meeting.  


The Model further states that the General Manager shall then make a decision and convey his/her 


decision to the Chief, Auditor, and the BART Police Citizen Review Board.  The Model then 


instructs the Chief to implement the General Manager’s decision. 


We have been informed that this process has been used at least twice in the six-year existence of 


BART’s oversight system.  Based on recollection, we learned that in both cases, the Chief 


communicated with the General Manager’s Office, pursuant to the Model, and the General 


Manager decided to accept the Chief’s recommendations.   


As implemented and as the current Model suggests, the appeal process has to date amounted to 


an ex parte meeting between the Chief and the General Manager.  In that process, the General 


Manager only apparently heard the arguments put forth by the Chief; neither the Auditor nor the 


BART Police Citizen Review Board had an opportunity to be heard or to rebut the Chief’s 


arguments.  Moreover, because there was no public accounting of this process, there was no 


record of the Chief’s reason for disagreement or the rationale for the General Manager accepting 


the Chief’s view over those of the oversight entities.   


In common law jurisprudence, most “appeal” processes consist of a forum where the appealing 


party submits arguments in writing, all other parties submit papers in response to the moving 


party and all parties can be heard in a meeting.  Moreover, the decision-maker generally affords 


each party the opportunity to respond to any arguments put forward by the “appealing” party at 


the meeting.  However, under the current plain language of the Model and apparent practice, the 


Chief of Police has the apparent ability to present his arguments to the General Manager without 


any opportunity for the Auditor or the BART Police Citizen Review Board to be heard.   







 


20 


 


The Model should be revised to explicitly provide for an opportunity for the Auditor and a 


representative (e.g., the chair) of the BART Police Citizen Review Board to have seats at the 


General Manager’s meeting with the Chief in order to be able to listen to the Chief’s arguments 


and to respond to them accordingly.
18


  Such a process will provide the General Manager the 


opportunity to hear from all impacted parties and be able to make a better-informed 


determination based on input from each of them.  The Model should also be revised to require 


the Auditor to publicly report on the outcome of any such appeals consistent with state law. 


Recommendation Fifteen: The Model should be changed to require the Chief to timely put 


forward the reasons and arguments for appeal in writing and provide the Auditor and the 


Chair of the BART Police Citizen Review Board the opportunity to respond in writing, to be 


present at any appeal meeting, and to respond to any additional arguments set forth by the 


Chief at the appeal meeting.  The Model should be further revised to require the General 


Manager to set out her/his findings in writing. 


Recommendation Sixteen: The Model should be changed to require the Auditor to publicly 


report the results of any such appeal meeting consistent with state law confidentiality 


requirements. 


The Model Should Be Revised so that the Chief of Police Does Not Determine Disputes 


Between the Auditor and the BART Police Citizen Review Board on Case Outcomes. 


Currently the Model states that in cases in which the BART Police Citizen Review Board 


disagrees with the Auditor and fail to come to a consensus, the Review Board and the Auditor 


are to appeal the disagreement to the Chief of Police for a determination.  Under the current 


model, the Chief then listens to both parties and determines whether to accept either the Review 


Board or the Auditor’s findings. 


Under the current language of the Model, the potential exists for an untenable situation in which 


the head of the agency subject to oversight is empowered to be the initial decision-maker when 


the two oversight entities disagree on outcome.
19


  A more appropriate dispute resolution process 


would be for the General Manager to convene a meeting with the Auditor, the Chair of the 


BART Police Citizen Review Board, and the Chief of Police.  During that meeting, the General 


Manager would hear the opposing positions of the oversight entities and render a disposition 


determination accordingly. 


Recommendation Seventeen: The Model should be changed so that when the BART Police 


oversight entities disagree on a case disposition, the General Manager will convene a meeting 


and, after receiving input from the oversight entities and the Chief of Police, render a 


disposition determination. 


                                                      
18


 Moreover, in order for the envisioned process to effectively work, the Chief must timely 


present any appeal to the General Manager. 


19
 We have been informed that, to date, this provision has not been applied in an actual case.  


While this is fortunate, the potential for such a circumstance obviously continues to exist. 







 


21 


 


The Model Should Be Modified to Allow Complainants to Appeal to OIPA Any BART PD 


Internal Affairs Findings. 


Currently the Model provides complainants the right to appeal to OIPA the findings of an 


internal investigation conducted by BART PD regarding “on-duty incidents.”  There is scant 


rationale for so limiting appellate rights of complainants.   


Recommendation Eighteen: The Model should be revised to provide complainants the right to 


appeal to OIPA the findings of any internal affairs investigation conducted by BART PD. 


Complainants Should Be Informed as a Matter of Course of Their Right to Appeal BART 


PD Internal Affairs Findings to OIPA. 


We have been informed that the right to appeal BART PD IA findings to OIPA has been used by 


complainants only infrequently.  One explanation for this may be complainants’ unawareness of 


this option.  Pursuant to state law, when BART PD closes an internal affairs investigation, it 


informs the complainant of that event by letter.  The closing letter could be used as an efficacious 


way to make complainants aware of their right to appeal the findings to OIPA. 


Recommendation Nineteen: BART and OIPA should work with BART PD to ensure that the 


Police Department’s required notification letter to the complainant regarding case outcome 


also informs the complainant of his/her right to appeal the finding to OIPA. 


Recommendation Twenty: OIPA should regularly report on the number of appeals received 


and the results of those appeals.   


The Model Should Be Revised to Protect all Disposition and Disciplinary Decisions from 


Unprincipled Changes at the End of the Process. 


Currently, the Model simply states that any discipline recommended shall be subjected to an 


administrative hearing prior implementation to address the “due process” rights of public 


employees.  However, the Model does not articulate a role for either oversight entity in the post-


disciplinary processes that currently exist. 


Prior to the actual imposition of discipline, BART employees have the ability to argue that any 


decision is not supported by the evidence or is inappropriate or otherwise unfair.  Currently, the 


Chief of Police has the ability to modify the initial determination and rescind charges or 


discipline as he sees fit.  As a result, the potential exists for initial disciplinary findings by the 


oversight entities to be entirely undone by the Chief with neither notice nor opportunity for input 


from them.  The Model’s silence on oversight’s role in post-disciplinary appellate processes 


creates a huge hole in the process that must be filled in order to ensure the effectiveness of 


oversight. 


One easily implemented remedy would be to add a provision to the Model requiring the Chief to 


consult with the Auditor prior to modifying any disposition or discipline decision.  If the 


employee has raised principled reasons during the post-discipline process for a modification, the 


Auditor should obviously be open to the Chief’s proposed amendments.  Conversely, the Auditor 


should have the opportunity to resist changes in outcome that do not seem to have a reasonable 







 


22 


 


basis.  If the proposed change is sufficiently significant in its impact on accountability, the 


Auditor should request a meeting with the General Manager prior to the change being 


effectuated.  The Model should also require the Auditor to report on any post-disciplinary 


changes in disposition and discipline and whether he agreed with the modifications.
20


 


After a disciplinary determination has been made, BART PD employees have the ability to 


appeal to an arbitrator.  BART is required in this forum to establish the policy violation and 


discipline, and any determination by the arbitrator is binding on the parties.  Again, our 


experience with other jurisdictions is that prior or during these proceedings, the Chief and entity 


may be approached by representatives of the employee with an offer to settle the case.  The 


settlement offer is usually an agreement by the employee to drop the appeal in exchange for a 


lessening or removal of the disciplinary determination.  Without the oversight entity’s input in 


these settlement offers, the potential exists for a settlement that undermines accountability.   


Again, an easy remedy exists.  The Model should require input from the Auditor before any 


settlement agreement is struck between BART and the appealing employee.  Should the Auditor 


determine that the settlement offer was unreasonable and undermined accountability, the Auditor 


should be able to convene a meeting with the General Manager for a final determination 


regarding the settlement offer.  Finally, the Model should require the Auditor to report on any 


disciplinary determinations that are settled, whether he was consulted, and whether he agreed 


with the decision to settle the case. 


The arbitration process itself is beyond the authority of OIPA but nonetheless warrants attention 


as an important influence on its work.  Arbitration hearings test the strength of internal 


investigations and disposition determinations and can uncover potential weaknesses in those 


processes.  In addition, an arbitrator has the authority to rescind even termination cases and order 


the agency to return the police officer to work – a power that is worthy of public awareness and 


scrutiny. 


During our review, we were informed of at least one instance in which a BART police officer 


was returned to work after being initially terminated by the Department for a serious violation.  


However, because the Model sets out no role for its oversight entity in these processes, the 


Auditor did not review or assess the reason for the decision to return this terminated employee to 


BART employ.  As importantly, the Model did not contemplate a public accounting of this 


decision as part of the Auditor’s transparency responsibilities.  This should be addressed. 


Recommendation Twenty-One: The Model should be revised to require the Chief of Police to 


consult with the Auditor prior to modifying any initial disposition or disciplinary 


determinations.  The Model should provide the Auditor an appeal process to the General 


Manager should he believe that any modification would result in a serious erosion of 


                                                      
20


 We were informed of one case in which a BART police officer originally received notice that 


he was to be terminated for a serious infraction that was investigated by the Police Department.  


However, that decision was reversed during the grievance process and the employee was 


returned to work.  The appropriateness of this decision notwithstanding, this is the type of case 


that OIPA should be reporting on publicly. 







 


23 


 


accountability.  The Model should require the Auditor to publicly report on any modification 


of an initial disposition or disciplinary modification and whether he agreed with the 


modification. 


Recommendation Twenty-Two: The Model should be revised to require BART to apprise 


OIPA of any offers to settle cases after discipline has been imposed and provide the Auditor an 


opportunity for consultation.  The Model should provide the Auditor the opportunity to appeal 


any intention to settle the matter to the General Manager should the Auditor find that the 


settlement would amount to a serious erosion of individual accountability.  The Model should 


require the Auditor to publicly report on any cases settled at the post-discipline stage and 


whether OIPA agreed with the decision to settle. 


Recommendation Twenty-Three: The Model should be revised to require the Auditor to report 


on any arbitration determinations that modify or rescind initial disposition and disciplinary 


decisions and to evaluate the reasons for any modification.  The Model should require the 


Auditor to identify any systemic issues that formed the basis for any modification and work 


with BART PD to remediate those issues. 


OIPA Should Report Publicly the Results of Any Completed Investigation. 


While currently OIPA provides some information regarding completed investigations, we 


recommend that its reporting be modified to include a narrative of the allegation, the results of 


the investigation, whether the BART Police Citizen Review Board agreed with OIPA’s 


recommendation, whether the Chief agreed with the proposed disposition, and whether there 


were any post-disciplinary changes to the initial disposition.  In most cases, the reporting should 


begin when the investigation is initiated, with additional information being included as the 


process moves forward.  Consistent with state law requirements, identifying information about 


the case or officers involved should not be included. 


Recommendation Twenty-Four: OIPA should publicly report on every investigation from 


inception to conclusion, providing information about the case result and the degree to which 


OIPA and the BART Police Citizen Review Board recommendations were implemented. 


F. Additional Risk Management Role for OIPA. 


OIPA Should Be Expressly Authorized to Review Any Claim, Civil Complaint, and Law 


Suit Settlements and Judgments. 


When an individual believes he or she has been aggrieved by police officers, the person can file a 


complaint with the agency and/or oversight entity.  Some persons, however, seek relief through 


the courts and file a claim or lawsuit instead.  Depending on how the concern is received, the 


entity’s response may be entirely different.  Complaints filed with the agency or oversight entity 


are investigated as personnel matters, while the evidence-gathering for litigation has a different 


and inherently defensive orientation.  We understand this dichotomy but see it differently – or at 


least more broadly.  Among other things, a claim or lawsuit is essentially a “citizen complaint 


with a price tag attached.”  If a jurisdiction handles these matters solely in litigation mode, it may 


overlook important questions of potential misconduct or resist the kind of investigation that 


might produce unwanted evidence. 







 


24 


 


For that reason, leading oversight entities routinely review claims and lawsuits to ensure that 


such an appropriate internal inquiry does occur in addition to other responses.  In a similar vein, 


oversight entities monitor civil litigation to identify potential individual officer performance 


issues as well as systemic issues that may be unsurfaced.  In cases resulting in significant 


settlements or adverse judgments, the oversight entity is often involved with the agency in 


developing a corrective action plan designed to remediate any of those issues.  


In large part, because the Model did not specify a role for OIPA in these matters, it has not been 


involved in reviewing the civil litigation from an oversight and risk management perspective.  


OIPA should expressly be provided such authorization so that it can perform this important 


function. 


Recommendation Twenty-Five: OIPA should be provided authority to review claims and 


lawsuits to ensure allegations of misconduct are thoroughly investigated. 


Recommendation Twenty-Six: OIPA should review any significant settlements and adverse 


judgments involving BART PD performance and work with BART PD to develop corrective 


actions intended to remediate any systemic issues. 


Recommendation Twenty-Seven: OIPA should report publicly on its work in reviewing civil 


litigation. 


G. Developing a Mediation Program 


OIPA Should Redouble its Efforts to Develop a Robust Mediation Program. 


The Model expressly sets out a role for the Auditor in developing a mediation program.  It states 


expressly that OIPA “shall develop a voluntary alternative dispute resolution process for 


resolving those complaints which may most appropriately be corrected or modified through less 


formal means.”  The Model also contemplated that the BART Police Citizen Review Board and 


BART Police Associations would be part of the development process. 


Nonetheless, in four years there has yet to be a case that has gone through a mediation process.  


While a few individual instances have come close, participants withdrew from the process at the 


eleventh hour.    


Mediation – where involved parties can safely and productively articulate different viewpoints 


with a neutral arbiter – provides a process consistent with contemporary principles of restorative 


and procedural justice.  The key to developing an effective mediation program is to make the 


process worthwhile to all participants, and departments have often faced challenges in getting 


officers to see the benefits.  While these challenges are real, the experience of agencies in other 


jurisdictions shows they are surmountable.  OIPA should examine these other jurisdictions to 


gain ideas for achieving a successful program.  BART PD also should be more engaged in 


working with OIPA and the Police Associations to consider additional incentives for police 


officers to engage in mediation. 







 


25 


 


Recommendation Twenty-Eight: OIPA should redouble its efforts to create a mediation 


process that is attractive to complainants and officers and provides an effective alternative 


dispute resolution process. 


H. Ensuring Prompt OIPA Notification of All Critical 


Incidents 


OIPA Should Receive Notification as to All Critical Incidents. 


Currently, the Model provides that the Auditor shall be notified immediately regarding an 


officer-involved shooting that results in the death or serious bodily injury to a member of the 


public or a police officer so that the Auditor can respond in real time to the investigative scene.  


The current language of the Model restrictively limits notification of OIPA to only uses of 


deadly force that result in death or serious bodily injury.
21


  While a shooting that does not result 


in serious injury or loss of life has less significant consequences for the involved parties, a non-


hit shooting or one that results in minor injury still involved a decision by the officer to use 


deadly force, and that decision is worthy of the same scrutiny.  Additionally, the notification 


protocol does not expressly include other uses of force that result in death or serious injury, or 


incidents in which an off-duty officer may take police action and use deadly force.   


We have been informed that, to the credit of BART PD, it has been regularly informing OIPA of 


a broader set of critical incidents that do not fit squarely within the Model’s language.  While 


BART PD’s voluntary approach is praiseworthy, the Model should be modified so that it is clear 


to all that notification of OIPA should occur for a broader category of incidents. 


Recommendation Twenty-Nine: The Model should be enhanced to ensure that OIPA is timely 


notified of any critical incident including all officer-involved shootings (on duty or off duty) 


regardless of whether the use of deadly force resulted in injury or death, any use of force 


resulting in significant injury, and any in-custody death. 


I. Enhancing OIPA’s Footprint Regarding Use of 


Force 


The Auditor Should Be Regularly Reviewing Uses of Force by BART Police Officers. 


In order for peace officers to perform their public safety function they are provided unique 


authority.  In addition to being provided the power to arrest, police are provided the authority to 


use force when necessary. This authority, however, must be strictly limited and its exercise 


carefully scrutinized in light of the Constitution, the law, and internal policy.  As a result, police 


officers are required to report when they use force, and command staff of the agency has a 


responsibility to review the policy and legal appropriateness of these incidents. 


Because of the inherent seriousness of force incidents, and the profound ramifications of misuse 


or abuse of this police power, independent oversight should be significantly involved in 


                                                      
21


 The subheading of the Model is entitled “On-Duty Officer Involved Shooting Incidents,” 


suggesting that there is no need to notify OIPA of off-duty uses of deadly force. 







 


26 


 


monitoring force.  Currently, except for some officer-involved shootings, OIPA’s review of force 


incidents is limited to situations when a “qualified person” complains of force.  As a result, both 


significant and minor force incidents escape the purview of BART’s oversight entity and are not 


subjected to outside independent review.   


OIPA should be afforded the opportunity to review every force incident and determine whether 


the force should be the subject of an internal affairs investigation.  OIPA should also review the 


force to determine whether other issues are implicated for the involved officers or the 


Department as a whole.  OIPA should work with BART PD to ensure that each force incident is 


reviewed with an eye toward identifying systemic issues such as training, equipment, 


supervision, and policy. 


We also understand that BART PD convenes use of force review boards that examine significant 


force incidents.  OIPA should regularly participate in those review boards to provide an 


independent perspective and to help assess individual performance and conduct as well as 


identify systemic issues.  Finally, OIPA should regularly report on its involvement in the force 


review process and on any critical incidents. 


Recommendation Thirty: The Model should be revised to provide OIPA the authority for and 


responsibility of reviewing use of force incidents by BART PD, regardless of whether the 


incident is a subject of a complaint. 


Recommendation Thirty-One: OIPA should regularly participate in BART PD’s use of force 


review boards. 


Recommendation Thirty-Two: OIPA should report publicly on its use of force review program 


including the outcome of BART PD’s use of force review boards. 


Recommendation Thirty-Three: OIPA should report publicly on the internal review of any 


officer-involved shootings, in-custody deaths, or serious uses of force. 


J. Mapping Out a Significant Role for the Auditor in 


BART PD’s Early Identification System 


OIPA Should Be Involved in the Early Identification System. 


We have been informed that BART PD continues to develop an early identification system.  This 


system is intended to use relevant data to identify police officers who may be displaying patterns 


of conduct that need to be addressed before they become a problem for the officer, the agency, 


and/or the public.  For example, an early identification system may reveal an officer who uses 


force significantly more frequently than his or her counterparts on the shift – a potential “red 


flag” that could make further scrutiny worthwhile.  The resultant intervention is intended to be 


remedial rather than punitive and might use mentoring, closer supervision, or other non-punitive 


strategies tailored to help mitigate or fix identified concerns.  


Our experience is such programs are not only potentially beneficial, but also that independent 


oversight can be a helpful resource in their development, implementation, and execution.  


Currently, there is no role for OIPA in the Department’s early identification system; we are 







 


27 


 


confident that setting out a distinct role for an independent voice will strengthen the system that 


BART PD has been developing. 


Recommendation Thirty-Four: The Model should be revised to provide authority and 


responsibility for OIPA to regularly participate in BART PD’s early identification process. 


Recommendation Thirty-Five: OIPA should report regularly on the status of the Department’s 


early identification system and results. 


K. Increasing OIPA’s Role as Auditor 


The Model Should Be Modified to Increase the Auditing Function of the Independent 


Police Auditor. 


While the professional oversight entity for BART PD is named the Independent Police Auditor, 


most of its work to date has been not auditing but investigating complaints.  This incongruity 


stems, in large part, because the Model does not clearly define the auditing role for the 


Auditor.
22


As a result, OIPA has not conducted systemic audits of vital police functions.  Other 


jurisdictions with robust oversight regularly conduct audits of their responsible police agencies, 


including the following areas: 


 Recruiting and hiring practices  


 Background investigations 


 Supervisor performance  


 Email, MDC and texting reviews  


 Academy and in-service training  


 Performance evaluations 


 Promotional and special assignment processes  


 Potential bias-based policing in stops or searches 


 Stop and frisk practices 


 Complaint intake procedures 


 Appropriate use of the disciplinary matrix 


 Transparency and public reporting of data by the police agency 


 Crisis intervention practices and/or interactions with the homeless 


 Police Department outreach 


 Use of lock-ups 


 Assessing compliance with precepts set out in pillars of 21
st
 Century Policing  


                                                      
22


 For example, one lost opportunity was that no role was created in the Model for OIPA to audit 


and report on BART PD’s progress on implementing the recommendations set forth by the 


NOBLE report referred to above. 







 


28 


 


These oversight entities publicly report on the results of those audits.
23


  Those same jurisdictions 


often monitor systems audits conducted by the police agencies themselves and publicly report on 


the results of those audits.    


The Model should be revised so that OIPA is provided authority and responsibility to conduct 


systemic audits of BART PD functions that impact the quality of the Department and the service 


provided to its public.  Similarly, the Model should provide OIPA the authority and 


responsibility of monitoring internal audits conducted by BART PD and to publicly report the 


results of those audits.
24


  


Recommendation Thirty-Six: The Model should be revised to provide OIPA the authority, 


access to data and records, staffing, and responsibility to conduct systemic audits of BART PD 


functions that impact the quality of the Department and the service provided to its public. 


Recommendation Thirty-Seven: The Model should be revised to provide OIPA the authority 


and responsibility to monitor any audits conducted by BART PD regarding similar issues and 


report publicly the results of those audits. 


L. Expanding OIPA’s Role in Policy Development 


The Model Should Explicitly Authorize OIPA to Be Involved in BART PD-Initiated Policy 


Development. 


The current Model expressly authorizes the Auditor to develop specific recommendations 


concerning “General Orders and Directives, procedures, practices, and training” intended to 


improve “professionalism, safety, effectiveness, and accountability” of BART PD employees.  


To its credit, OIPA has made policy recommendations – for example, it most recently suggested 


changes to the way in which BART PD deals with panhandlers.  However, OIPA has had little 


involvement in policy and training changes initiated by BART PD.
25


  Our experience is that the 


most efficacious method of policy development is to have the police incorporate the feedback 


and input of oversight entities at an early stage, rather than the presentation of a “finished” 


product for review at the end of the process. 


                                                      
23


 We were informed that the recently retired Chief requested OIPA to conduct an audit of 


background investigation files, but that the project was halted because of disagreement regarding 


the Auditor’s access and authority. 


24
 The increased role we recommend for OIPA in auditing, reporting, and real-time monitoring of 


BART PD IA cases will likely result in a need to provide additional resources to the Auditor.  


The Board of Directors, the General Manager, and OIPA should work jointly to determine the 


degree to which additional resources will be needed to perform these additional functions. 


25
 For example, BART PD recently developed language intended to modify its use of force 


policy; OIPA had no involvement in its initial development. 







 


29 


 


Recommendation Thirty-Eight: The Model should be revised to provide OIPA the authority 


and responsibility to be involved in any policy or training initiatives being developed by BART 


PD and to report publicly on any reforms.   


The Model Should Explicitly Authorize OIPA to Forward Any Policy Recommendations to 


the General Manager and/or the Board of Directors. 


While the Model currently authorizes the BART Police Citizen Review Board to forward any of 


its policy recommendations to the General Manager and/or the Board of Directors, no similar 


express language exists for OIPA.  While we have been informed that in practice OIPA has been 


provided the ability to forward policy recommendations it has made to these entities, it would be 


advisable to revise the Model to expressly recognize this authority.   


Recommendation Thirty-Nine: The Model should be revised to provide OIPA the express 


authority to forward policy recommendations to the General Manager and/or Board of 


Directors.  In situations in which OIPA’s recommendations are not accepted by BART PD, 


OIPA should consider whether to forward its recommendations for further consideration to 


BART’s governing entity. 


OIPA Should Ensure that the Public Is Informed on Status and Outcome of Policy 


Recommendations. 


Over the years, OIPA has developed thoughtful policy recommendations.  However, there is no 


“record” of the degree to which BART PD accepted and integrated those recommendations.  For 


example, in its 2012-13 annual report, OIPA set out in detail recommended changes to BART 


PD’s recording policy.  However, in the subsequent annual reports, there is no follow up on 


whether BART PD accepted or rejected each of the recommendations.   


Recommendation Forty: In its annual report, OIPA should include an update on any previous 


outstanding recommendations and the degree to which the recommendations were endorsed 


by the Review Board and accepted by BART PD. 


M. Ensuring Integration of Oversight in BART PD’s 


Policies and Practices 


BART PD’s General Orders Should Include the Authorities and Responsibilities of its 


Oversight Entities and a Provision Recognizing the Duty to Cooperate with those Oversight 


Entities. 


While the current General Orders and Directives of BART PD include some references to the 


existence and responsibility of the Independent Police Auditor and the BART Police Citizen 


Review Board, the specific responsibilities set out by the Model do not appear to be incorporated 


into those Orders.  BART PD General Orders should make specific reference to oversight and its 


responsibilities.  Moreover, BART PD’s Orders should inform its members of their responsibility 


to cooperate and respect the role of its oversight entities. 







 


30 


 


Recommendation Forty-One: BART and OIPA should work with BART PD to ensure that 


BART PD’s General Orders incorporate the authority of its oversight entities and the duty of 


members to cooperate in the execution of that authority. 


N. Ensuring Regular Dialogue Between Oversight and 


BART Police Associations 


OIPA and the BART Police Citizen Review Board Should Develop Mechanisms to Ensure 


At Least Annual Meets with the BART Police Associations. 


The Model instructs both OIPA and the BART Police Citizen Review Board to meet 


“periodically” and “seek input” from the BART Police Managers Association and the BART 


Police Officers Association.  We have been informed that while meetings may have occurred 


during the first year and have been subsequently scheduled, actual meetings over the past few 


years have been sporadic at best.  We believe that there is value in having periodic meetings 


between the oversight entities and those tasked with representing the interests of BART police 


officers.  For that reason, a meeting schedule should be devised by both oversight entities to 


ensure there is an attempt to meet with both Police Associations at least annually.  OIPA and the 


Citizen Review Board should annually report on any meetings that are held with the Police 


Associations. 


Recommendation Forty-Two: OIPA and the BART Police Citizen Review Board should 


attempt to schedule a meeting at least annually with the two BART Police Associations.  The 


oversight entities should annually report on whether such meetings occurred. 


O. Clarifying the Relationship Between OIPA and the 


BART Police Citizen Review Board 


The Model Should Be Revised to Provide Further Guidance Regarding the Relationship 


Between OIPA and the BART Police Citizen Review Board. 


Consistent with oversight trends nationwide, BART’s oversight system includes a professional 


oversight office and an oversight board appointed from the community.  That paradigm has 


resulted in OIPA being able to develop an expertise in police accountability practices adapted to 


a police agency designed to police an extensive transit system and a Board selected from the 


BART community that has a meaningful voice and role in both individual cases and systemic 


reform.   


While it is laudatory that the drafters of the Model recognized the value in having both police 


practices experts and community members involved in providing oversight, more clarity is 


needed in defining the relationship between the two entities.  The Model should expressly 


recognize that OIPA and the BART Police Citizen Review Board are to be considered as entities 


with complementary oversight roles that are independent of each other. 


Much of the source of confusion about the complementary oversight entities is that the Model 


assigns the BART Police Citizen Review Board administrative tasks to OIPA.  To eliminate this 


overlap, BART should consider creating an Executive Assistant position to provide 







 


31 


 


administrative support for the BART Police Citizen Review Board.  The Executive Assistant 


would assume the administrative functions now set out in Chapter 1-05 of the Model including: 


 Records of Review Board meetings 


 Preparation of Review Board reports 


 Review Board staff support and facilitation of training 


 Review Board community outreach and communicating with the public 


 Application process for open Review Board seats 


In addition to the administrative tasks expressly set out in the Model, the Executive Assistant 


could also be responsible for assisting in developing the Review Board meeting agenda, 


arranging Review Board training, coordinating Review Board outreach, assisting with Review 


Board reporting responsibilities, and providing any additional administrative support for the 


BART Police Citizen Review Board. 


The Model currently states that the BART Police Citizen Review Board “shall assess and report 


to the Board of Directors’ Personnel Committee on the performance and effectiveness” of OIPA.  


We have been informed that this provision of the Model has not been implemented in practice.  


The Auditor is subject to an annual performance review by the BART Board of Directors, the 


appointing authority.  In assessing that performance, the Board of Directors could and should 


solicit input from several stakeholders, including the BART Police Citizen Review Board.  


However, the Model should be modified to clarify that the BART Police Citizen Review Board 


is not the “assessor” of the Auditor’s performance but simply another important source for input 


to the Board of Directors. 


Similarly, when a BART Police Citizen Review Board seeks reappointment to a new term, the 


appointing Director should seek input from OIPA along with other important stakeholders on the 


performance of that Review Board member. 


Recommendation Forty-Three: The Model should be revised to expressly clarify the 


independent yet complementary roles of the BART Police Citizen Review Board and OIPA. 


Recommendation Forty-Four: BART should consider creating an Executive Assistant position 


for the BART Police Citizen Review Board to assist with administrative tasks now assigned to 


OIPA. 


Recommendation Forty-Five: The Model should be revised to acknowledge that the BART 


Police Citizen Review Board is one potential source of information when the Board of 


Directors is seeking input on the performance of OIPA. 


Recommendation Forty-Six: The Model should be revised to provide OIPA the opportunity for 


input when a BART Police Citizen Review Board member seeks reappointment. 


P. Clarifying and Enhancing the Roles of the BART 


Police Citizen Review Board 







 


32 


 


The Model should provide clarification of BART Police Citizen Review Board Member 


Qualifications. 


Currently the Model disallows from service on the BART Police Citizen Review Board any 


person “currently employed in a law enforcement capacity” or any “relative of current and 


former BART Police Department personnel.”  While prohibiting relatives of current and former 


BART PD personnel from serving, the Model does not expressly disallow former BART PD 


personnel themselves from membership on the BART Police Citizen Review Board.  The Model 


should be revised to correct this incongruity. 


Recommendation Forty-Seven: The Model should clarify that former BART PD personnel are 


ineligible to serve on the BART Police Citizen Review Board. 


BART Police Citizen Review Board Members Should Have Requisite Training in Order to 


Fulfill Their Responsibilities. 


By selecting BART Police Citizen Review Board members from the community, BART 


oversight benefits from each member’s life experience and perspective.  However, modern day 


policing is increasingly complex, and BART PD itself has a unique role in providing public 


safety for a large transit system.  As detailed above, the BART Police Citizen Review Board has 


been provided considerable authority, including the ability to consider and vote on the Auditor’s 


recommendations regarding specific complaint investigation dispositions.
26


  This authority 


carries with it a heavy burden of responsibility and the BART Police Citizen Review Board 


cannot effectively exercise that authority regarding investigation dispositions without each 


member undertaking a careful read of each case.
27


 


Accordingly, in order to effectively carry out BART Police Citizen Review Board duties, each 


member must be afforded a basic understanding of progressive police practices, constitutional 


and state law, principles of civilian oversight, and BART PD’s distinctive challenges.  The 


training should also focus on how, as expressly stated in the Model, the BART Police Citizen 


Review Board fulfills the “essential community involvement component” piece of the system 


and how it can most effectively fulfill this role.  To these ends, a training curriculum developed 


for each new Review Board member, including ride-alongs, should be devised. In addition, 


Review Board members should get additional training at least semi-annually, perhaps as an 


agenda item during regularly scheduled meetings.  As noted above, we recommend assignment 


of an Executive Assistant to the Review Board; that individual could be responsible, with input 


from the existing BART Police Citizen Review Board and the Auditor, for developing and 


maintaining the BART Police Citizen Review Board’s training program. 


                                                      
26


 The Board of Directors should continue to be mindful of the weighty responsibilities 


demanded of each Review Board member when making future appointments. 


27
 Review Board members who have not had the opportunity to read the investigation and 


accompanying materials should recuse themselves from deliberations and voting on the 


Auditor’s recommendation for that particular case.  







 


33 


 


Recommendation Forty-Eight: A Training Curriculum Should Be Devised For Incoming 


BART Police Citizen Review Board Members, and In-Service Training Should Be Provided at 


Least Semi-Annually to Current Review Board Members. 


Rotating the Location of the BART Police Citizen Review Board Meetings Would Allow 


the Review Board to Reach More Communities. 


As noted above, BART PD is responsible for providing public safety for a transit system to 


traverses multiple jurisdictions over a wide-ranging area.  Yet the BART Police Citizen Review 


Board responsible for oversight over this region only meets at one location.  Community 


members served must travel to this location to attend meetings and provide public comment.  


While this challenge is ameliorated by the transit-friendly locale of the meetings, it would 


demonstrate the Review Board’s responsiveness to other communities to rotate the meeting 


locations.  While such a rotation may provide some logistical challenges, it appears worth 


exploring whether those hurdles can be overcome.  


Recommendation Forty-Nine: The BART Police Citizen Review Board should consider 


rotating its meetings to a wider array of locales served by BART. 


The BART Police Citizen Review Board’s Outreach Should Be More Vibrant. 


The current Model notes that the existence of the BART Police Citizen Review Board effectuates 


the essential community involvement component of the oversight system.  To advance that 


crucial role, the Model expects that the BART Police Citizen Review Board will lead in outreach 


efforts to the community, particularly constituencies impacted most by policing, including 


communities of color, immigrant communities, and individuals with psychiatric disabilities.  


While the Review Board’s regularly scheduled public meetings fulfills that role to some degree, 


the Model certainly contemplated that more could and should be done in the outreach arena.  We 


gather from the BART Police Citizen Review Board’s annual reports that outreach has been 


largely undertaken by a few members.  However, outreach should be an expected responsibility 


of all members of the Review Board. 


To that end, before a Review Board member is appointed, the appointing authority should 


emphasize the outreach expectation to the potential appointee.  Moreover, at one year intervals, 


the BART Police Citizen Review Board should place an item on the agenda in which each 


member publicly reports on the outreach efforts he/she has undertaken.  The degree to which a 


member has engaged in public outreach should be considered by the appointing authority in 


determining whether to reappoint the member to an additional term.  The Executive Assistant 


(recommended elsewhere) for the BART Police Citizen Review Board should track the outreach 


efforts of individual members and the Review Board as a whole. 


Recommendation Fifty: Procedures should be adopted by the BART Police Citizen Review 


Board intended to ensure that the Model’s commitment to outreach is achieved.  To that end, 


each incoming member should be alerted to outreach expectations by his/her appointing 


authority.  On an annual basis, each Review Board member should report publicly on the 


outreach he/she has undertaken the previous year.  Finally, the degree of each member’s 







 


34 


 


public outreach will be considered prior to reappointing the Review Board member to an 


additional term. 


The Model Should Provide More Flexibility for “Good Cause” Meeting Absences. 


Currently, the Model calls for removal of any BART Police Citizen Review Board member who 


misses more than three regularly scheduled meetings per year.  While the interest in having 


Review Board members attend meetings is well-placed, there may be situations where a member 


has “good cause” to miss a meeting.  For that reason, it would be advisable to provide each 


Director with flexibility to excuse his/her appointed Review Board member’s absence for good 


cause.  Such excusal would not count against the absence limit requirements.  


Recommendation Fifty-One: The Model should be revised to authorize excused absences for 


good cause that would not count against the absence limitations. 


Q. Providing Increased Transparency Authority for 


BART Oversight 


The BART Oversight Entities Should Be Expressly Authorized to Make Public Statements. 


It is not uncommon for officer-involved shootings, in-custody deaths, significant force incident 


or allegations of misconduct to engender immediate controversy and concern, particularly if part 


of the incident is captured on videotape.  In those cases, the existence of oversight entities can 


assist in tempering that concern with the recognition that there will be an independent review and 


accounting of the incident at the conclusion of any investigation.  In recognition of this, 


jurisdictions have provided their oversight entities full rein to make public statements about their 


role in the wake of controversial incidents.  


We have been informed that the Auditor has interpreted the Model to allow him the authority to 


make public statements about his work and BART policing issues.  That being said, the Model 


should be revised to expressly authorize the Auditor freedom to make such statements.  


Moreover, the Auditor should be free to speak with any media outlets about any aspect of 


oversight and in conjunction with any public report or findings.  The BART Police Citizen 


Review Board’s ability to make timely public statements provides logistical challenges since the 


Review Board meets as a body only periodically.  However, the BART Police Citizen Review 


Board should consider authorizing the Chair to make public statements on behalf of the Review 


Board regarding role and process when an exigency to respond is presented. 


Recommendation Fifty-Two: The Model should be revised to expressly authorize OIPA and 


the BART Police Citizen Review Board to make public statements about their oversight work.   


R. Ensuring Periodic Review of BART Oversight 


BART’s Oversight Entities Should Be Reviewed on a Regular Basis. 


As noted above, the current Model provided for an assessment of oversight after one year of 


implementation.  Because the world of oversight is new and constantly evolving, there should be 


a commitment to a periodic review of BART’s oversight entities on a going forward basis.  







 


35 


 


Recommendation Fifty-Three: The Model should be revised to call for periodic reviews of 


BART’s oversight entities at a minimum of four-year intervals.     


 








State and Federal 
Legislative Update


BART Board of Directors
March 8, 2018







2


STATE Legislation for Consideration


SUPPORT
Proposition 69 – Motor vehicle fees and taxes: restriction on expenditures: 
appropriations limit


AB 2304 (Holden) – Transit pass programs: status report


SB 1185 (Hill) – Firearms: law enforcement agencies: firearm accounting


SB 831 (Wieckowski) – Land use: accessory dwelling units


SB 827 (Wiener) – Planning and zoning: transit-rich housing bonus


NEUTRAL
AB 2923 (Chiu and Grayson) – BART: transit-oriented development







3


STATE Legislation of Interest


AB 2161 (Chiu) – Housing: homeless integrated data warehouse


AB 3171 (Ting) – Homeless Persons Services Block Grant


SB 912 (Beall) – Housing  


SB 918 (Wiener) – Homeless Youth Act of 2018


SB 1045 (Wiener) – Conservatorship: chronic homeless: mental health


SB 1436 (Portantino) – Homelessness: encampments







4


FEDERAL Legislative Update


Congress passes two-year budget deal
• Includes a Continuing Resolution through March 23
• Increases domestic spending by approximately $63 billion/year and 


defense spending by approximately $80 billion/year
• Provides top-line spending levels for FY18 and FY19 appropriations bills 


President’s FY19 Budget
• Prioritizes the Department of Defense, border security, improved 


veterans’ health care, and efforts to combat opioid abuse 
• Provides for formula funding authorized in the FAST Act; sets DOT 


discretionary spending at $15.6 billion, a 19% decrease from the FY17


Infrastructure Package
• Includes $200 billion in direct federal spending to leverage $1.5 trillion 


in local, state, and private investment over ten years
• Creates new programs on Incentive Grants, Rural Infrastructure, 


Transformative Projects, and Interior Maintenance





		���������State and Federal Legislative Update

		STATE Legislation for Consideration

		STATE Legislation of Interest

		FEDERAL Legislative Update


































































































































































































































